
 
 

v1 2015 

AGENDA   
 

Meeting Regeneration Committee 

Date Thursday 19 January 2017 

Time 2.00 pm 

Place Committee Room 5, City Hall, The 
Queen's Walk, London, SE1 2AA 

Copies of the reports and any attachments may be found at: 
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/regeneration-committee 
 
 
Most meetings of the London Assembly and its Committees are webcast live at 
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts where you can also view past 
meetings. 
 
Members of the Committee 
Navin Shah AM (Chair) 
Shaun Bailey AM (Deputy Chairman) 
Tony Devenish AM 

Andrew Dismore AM 
Fiona Twycross AM 

 

A meeting of the Committee has been called by the Chair of the Committee to deal with the business 

listed below.  

Mark Roberts, Executive Director of Secretariat 
Wednesday 11 January 2017 

 
Further Information 
If you have questions, would like further information about the meeting or require special facilities 
please contact: Joanna Brown/Teresa Young, Senior Committee Officers; Telephone: 020 7983 6559; 
email: joanna.brown@london.gov.uk / teresa.young@london.gov.uk 
 
For media enquiries please contact Lisa Lam, External Relations Officer; Telephone: 020 7983 4067. 
If you have any questions about individual items please contact the author whose details are at the 
end of the report.  
 
This meeting will be open to the public, except for where exempt information is being discussed as 
noted on the agenda.  A guide for the press and public on attending and reporting meetings of local 
government bodies, including the use of film, photography, social media and other means is available 
at www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf.  
 
There is access for disabled people, and induction loops are available.  There is limited underground 
parking for orange and blue badge holders, which will be allocated on a first-come first-served basis.  
Please contact Facilities Management on 020 7983 4750 in advance if you require a parking space or 
further information. 

http://www.london.gov.uk/moderngov/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=303
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts
http://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf


 

 
Certificate Number: FS 80233 

If you, or someone you know, needs a copy of the agenda, minutes or reports 
in large print or Braille, audio, or in another language, then please call us on 
020 7983 4100 or email assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.   
 

 
 

mailto:assembly.translations@london.gov.uk


 

3 
 

Agenda 
Regeneration Committee 
Thursday 19 January 2017 
 
 

1 Apologies for Absence and Chair's Announcements  
 
 To receive any apologies and any announcements from the Chair. 

 
 

2 Declarations of Interests (Pages 1 - 4) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat. 

Contact:  Joanna Brown, joanna.brown@london.gov.uk and Teresa Young, 

teresa.young@london.gov.uk 020 7983 6559 

 

The Committee is recommended to: 

 

(a)  Note the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table at 

Agenda Item 2, as disclosable pecuniary interests; 

 

(b)  Note the declaration by any Member(s) of any disclosable pecuniary interests 

in specific items listed on the agenda and the necessary action taken by the 

Member(s) regarding withdrawal following such declaration(s); and 

 

(c)    Note the declaration by any Member(s) of any other interests deemed to be 

relevant (including any interests arising from gifts and hospitality received 

which are not at the time of the meeting reflected on the Authority’s register 

of gifts and hospitality, and noting also the advice from the GLA’s 

Monitoring Officer set out at Agenda Item 2) and to note any necessary 

action taken by the Member(s) following such declaration(s). 
 
 

3 Minutes (Pages 5 - 36) 

 
 The Committee is recommended to confirm the minutes of the meeting of the 

Committee held on 7 December 2016 to be signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

 The appendices to the minutes set out on pages 11 to 34 are attached for Members and 

officers only but are available from the following area of the GLA’s website:  

www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/regeneration-committee 
 
 

  
 
 

mailto:joanna.brown@london.gov.uk
mailto:Teresa.young@london.gov.uk
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/regeneration-committee


 

4 
 

4 Summary List of Actions (Pages 37 - 40) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

Contact:  Joanna Brown, joanna.brown@london.gov.uk and Teresa Young, 

teresa.young@london.gov.uk 020 7983 6559 

 

The Committee is recommended to note the completed and ongoing actions arising 

from previous meetings of the Committee. 
 
 

5 Action Taken Under Delegated Authority (Pages 41 - 42) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

Contact:  Joanna Brown, joanna.brown@london.gov.uk and Teresa Young, 

teresa.young@london.gov.uk 020 7983 6559 

 

The Committee is recommended to note the action taken by the Chair, 

Navin Shah AM, under delegated authority, following consultation with the Deputy 

Chairman, namely to: 

 

(a) Agree the arrangements for the Committee’s site visit on 12 January 2017 to 

meet artists and residents of Hackney Wick as part of the Committee’s 

scrutiny of culture-led regeneration; and  

 

(b) Agree the scope for the Committee’s meeting with the London Legacy 

Development Corporation at this meeting. 
 
 

6 London Legacy Development Corporation Review of Progress and 
Finances (Pages 43 - 46) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

Contact: Julien Danero Iglesias, scrutiny@london.gov.uk; 020 7983 5802 

 

The Committee is recommended to: 

 

(a) Note the report as background to the discussion with invited guests on the 

London Legacy Development Corporation’s progress and finances, and note 

the subsequent discussion; and 

 

(b) Delegate authority to the Chair, Navin Shah AM, in consultation with the 

Deputy Chairman, to agree any output from the Committee’s meeting on the 

London Legacy Development Corporation’s progress and finances. 
 
 

  
 
 

mailto:joanna.brown@london.gov.uk
mailto:Teresa.young@london.gov.uk
mailto:joanna.brown@london.gov.uk
mailto:Teresa.young@london.gov.uk
mailto:scrutiny@london.gov.uk


 

5 
 

7 Regeneration Committee Work Programme (Pages 47 - 50) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

Contact: Paul Watling, scrutiny@london.gov.uk; 020 7983 4393 

 
The Committee is recommended to: 
 

(a) Agree its updated work programme; 

 

(b) Delegate authority to the Chair, Navin Shah AM, in consultation with the 

Deputy Chairman, to agree the scoping for the meeting on broadband and 

connectivity in London on 7 February 2017.  

 

(c) Delegate authority to the Chair, Navin Shah AM, in consultation with the 

Deputy Chairman, to agree the topic for the meeting on 1 March 2017. 
 
 

8 Date of Next Meeting  
 
 The next meeting of the Regeneration Committee is scheduled for Tuesday, 7 February 2017 

in the Chamber, City Hall. 
 
 

9 Any Other Business the Chair Considers Urgent  
 
 
 

mailto:paul.watling@london.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                                      

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk  v2/2016 

 

Subject: Declarations of Interests 
 

Report to: Regeneration Committee 
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 

 
Date: 19 January 2017 

 
This report will be considered in public 
 
 
 
1. Summary  

 
1.1 This report sets out details of offices held by Assembly Members for noting as disclosable pecuniary 

interests and requires additional relevant declarations relating to disclosable pecuniary interests, and 

gifts and hospitality to be made. 

 
 
2. Recommendations  
 

2.1 That the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table below, be noted 

as disclosable pecuniary interests1; 

2.2 That the declaration by any Member(s) of any disclosable pecuniary interests in specific 

items listed on the agenda and the necessary action taken by the Member(s) regarding 

withdrawal following such declaration(s) be noted; and 

2.3 That the declaration by any Member(s) of any other interests deemed to be relevant 

(including any interests arising from gifts and hospitality received which are not at the 

time of the meeting reflected on the Authority’s register of gifts and hospitality, and 

noting also the advice from the GLA’s Monitoring Officer set out at below) and any 

necessary action taken by the Member(s) following such declaration(s) be noted. 

 
3. Issues for Consideration  
 
3.1 Relevant offices held by Assembly Members are listed in the table overleaf: 

  

                                                 
1 The Monitoring Officer advises that: Paragraph 10 of the Code of Conduct will only preclude a Member from 
participating in any matter to be considered or being considered at, for example, a meeting of the Assembly, 
where the Member has a direct Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in that particular matter. The effect of this is 
that the ‘matter to be considered, or being considered’ must be about the Member’s interest. So, by way of 
example, if an Assembly Member is also a councillor of London Borough X, that Assembly Member will be 
precluded from participating in an Assembly meeting where the Assembly is to consider a matter about the 
Member’s role / employment as a councillor of London Borough X; the Member will not be precluded from 
participating in a meeting where the Assembly is to consider a matter about an activity or decision of London 
Borough X. 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



        

 

Member Interest 

Tony Arbour AM Member, LFEPA; Member, LB Richmond 

Jennette Arnold OBE AM Committee of the Regions  

Gareth Bacon AM Member, LFEPA; Member, LB Bexley 

Kemi Badenoch AM  

Shaun Bailey AM  

Sian Berry AM Member, LB Camden 

Andrew Boff AM Congress of Local and Regional Authorities (Council of 
Europe) 

Leonie Cooper AM Member, LFEPA; Member, LB Wandsworth 

Tom Copley AM  

Unmesh Desai AM Member, LB Newham 

Tony Devenish AM Member, City of Westminster 

Andrew Dismore AM Member, LFEPA 

Len Duvall AM  

Florence Eshalomi AM Member, LFEPA; Member, LB Lambeth 

Nicky Gavron AM  

David Kurten AM Member, LFEPA 

Joanne McCartney AM Deputy Mayor 

Steve O’Connell AM Member, LB Croydon  

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM  

Keith Prince AM Member, LB Redbridge 

Caroline Russell AM Member, LFEPA; Member, LB Islington 

Dr Onkar Sahota AM  

Navin Shah AM  

Fiona Twycross AM Chair, LFEPA; Chair of the London Local Resilience Forum 

Peter Whittle AM  
 

[Note: LB - London Borough; LFEPA - London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority.   
The appointments to LFEPA reflected above take effect as from 17 June 2016.] 

 
3.2 Paragraph 10 of the GLA’s Code of Conduct, which reflects the relevant provisions of the Localism 

Act 2011, provides that:  
 

- where an Assembly Member has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to be considered 
or being considered or at  

 

(i) a meeting of the Assembly and any of its committees or sub-committees; or  
 

(ii) any formal meeting held by the Mayor in connection with the exercise of the Authority’s 
functions  

 

- they must disclose that interest to the meeting (or, if it is a sensitive interest, disclose the fact 
that they have a sensitive interest to the meeting); and  

 

- must not (i) participate, or participate any further, in any discussion of the matter at the 
meeting; or (ii) participate in any vote, or further vote, taken on the matter at the meeting 

 

UNLESS 
 

- they have obtained a dispensation from the GLA’s Monitoring Officer (in accordance with 
section 2 of the Procedure for registration and declarations of interests, gifts and hospitality – 
Appendix 5 to the Code).    

 

3.3 Failure to comply with the above requirements, without reasonable excuse, is a criminal offence; as is 

knowingly or recklessly providing information about your interests that is false or misleading. 

Page 2



        

3.4 In addition, the Monitoring Officer has advised Assembly Members to continue to apply the test that 

was previously applied to help determine whether a pecuniary / prejudicial interest was arising - 

namely, that Members rely on a reasonable estimation of whether a member of the public, with 

knowledge of the relevant facts, could, with justification, regard the matter as so significant that it 

would be likely to prejudice the Member’s judgement of the public interest.  

3.5 Members should then exercise their judgement as to whether or not, in view of their interests and 

the interests of others close to them, they should participate in any given discussions and/or 

decisions business of within and by the GLA. It remains the responsibility of individual Members to 

make further declarations about their actual or apparent interests at formal meetings noting also 

that a Member’s failure to disclose relevant interest(s) has become a potential criminal offence. 

3.6 Members are also required, where considering a matter which relates to or is likely to affect a person 

from whom they have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25 within the 

previous three years or from the date of election to the London Assembly, whichever is the later, to 

disclose the existence and nature of that interest at any meeting of the Authority which they attend 

at which that business is considered.  

3.7 The obligation to declare any gift or hospitality at a meeting is discharged, subject to the proviso set 

out below, by registering gifts and hospitality received on the Authority’s on-line database. The on-

line database may be viewed here:  

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/gifts-and-hospitality.  

3.8 If any gift or hospitality received by a Member is not set out on the on-line database at the time of 

the meeting, and under consideration is a matter which relates to or is likely to affect a person from 

whom a Member has received a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25, Members 

are asked to disclose these at the meeting, either at the declarations of interest agenda item or when 

the interest becomes apparent.  

3.9 It is for Members to decide, in light of the particular circumstances, whether their receipt of a gift or 

hospitality, could, on a reasonable estimation of a member of the public with knowledge of the 

relevant facts, with justification, be regarded as so significant that it would be likely to prejudice the 

Member’s judgement of the public interest. Where receipt of a gift or hospitality could be so 

regarded, the Member must exercise their judgement as to whether or not, they should participate in 

any given discussions and/or decisions business of within and by the GLA. 

 

4. Legal Implications 
 

4.1 The legal implications are as set out in the body of this report. 

 
5. Financial Implications 
 

5.1 There are no financial implications arising directly from this report. 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: None 

Contact Officer: Joanna Brown and Teresa Young, Senior Committee Officers 

Telephone: 020 7983 6559 

E-mail: joanna.brown@london.gov.uk and teresa.young@london.gov.uk  

 

Page 3

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/gifts-and-hospitality
mailto:joanna.brown@london.gov.uk
mailto:teresa.young@london.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



                                                                      

 
 
City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

 

MINUTES 
 

Meeting: Regeneration Committee 
Date: Wednesday 7 December 2016 
Time: 2.30 pm 
Place: Committee Room 5, City Hall, The 

Queen's Walk, London, SE1 2AA 
 
Copies of the minutes may be found at:  

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/regeneration 

 

 
Present: 
 
Navin Shah AM (Chair) 
Shaun Bailey AM (Deputy Chairman) 
Tony Devenish AM 
Andrew Dismore AM 
Fiona Twycross AM 
 
 

1   Apologies for Absence and Chair's Announcements (Item 1) 

 

1.1 There were no apologies for absence. 

 
 
2   Declarations of Interests (Item 2) 

 

2.1 Resolved: 

 

That the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table at 

Agenda Item 2, be noted as disclosable pecuniary interests. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/regeneration


Greater London Authority 
Regeneration Committee 

Wednesday 7 December 2016 

 

 
 

3   Minutes (Item 3) 

 
3.1 Resolved: 
 

That the minutes of the Regeneration Committee meeting held on 13 October 2016 
be signed by the Chair as a correct record. 

 
 
4   Summary List of Actions (Item 4) 

 

4.1 Resolved: 

 

That the completed and ongoing actions arising from a previous meeting of the 

Committee be noted. 

 
 
5   Action Taken Under Delegated Authority (Item 5) 

 

5.1 The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat. 

 

5.2 Resolved: 

 

That the action taken by the Chair, Navin Shah AM, under delegated authority, 

following consultation with the Deputy Chairman, namely to agree the 

arrangements for the Committee’s site visit to the Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park on 

10 November 2016, be noted. 

 
 
6   The Mayor's Review of the Old Oak and Park Royal Development 

Corporation (Item 6) 

 

6.1 The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat as a background 

to a discussion with an invited guest on the Mayor’s review of the Old Oak and Park Royal 

Development Corporation. 

 

6.2 The Chair welcomed Fiona Fletcher-Smith, Executive Director of Development, Enterprise 

and Environment, Greater London Authority (GLA), to the meeting.  A transcript of the 

discussion is attached at Appendix 1. 

 

6.3 At the end of the discussion, the Chair thanked the Executive Director of Development, 

Enterprise and Environment, GLA, for her attendance and helpful contribution to the 

meeting. 
 
 
 

Page 6



Greater London Authority 
Regeneration Committee 

Wednesday 7 December 2016 

 

 
 

6.4 Resolved: 

 

(a) That the report and discussion with invited guests be noted; and 

 

(b) That authority be delegated to the Chair, in consultation with the 

Deputy Chairman, to agree any output from the discussion on the Mayor’s 

review of the Old Oak and Park Royal Development Corporation. 

 
 
7   The Future of Regeneration Funding (Item 7) 

 
7.1 The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat as a background 

to a discussion with invited guests on the future of regeneration funding in London. 
 
7.2 The Chair welcomed the following invited guests to the meeting: 

 Debbie Jackson, Assistant Director - Regeneration GLA; 

 Alex Conway, European Programmes Director, GLA; 

 Richard Simpson, Executive Director of Resources, London Borough of Croydon; and  

 Cath Shaw, Deputy Chief Executive Officer, London Borough of Barnet. 
 
7.3 A transcript of the discussion is attached at Appendix 2. 
 
7.4 During the course of the discussion, the European Programmes Director, GLA, undertook to 

provide information pertaining to: 

 The major beneficiaries in London of the Horizon 2020 Project; and 

 European Investment Bank loans in London. 
 
7.5 During the course of the discussion the Deputy Chief Executive Officer, London Borough of 

Barnet, agreed to provide information pertaining to European Social Fund funding that has 
been put into Burnt Oak, London Borough of Barnet, for employment programmes. 

 
7.6 At the end of the discussion, the Chair thanked the guests for their attendance and 

contributions to the meeting. 
 
7.7 Resolved: 
 

(a) That the report and discussion with invited guests be noted and that the Chair 

writes to the guests requesting the follow-up information as outlined in 

paragraphs 7.4 to 7.5 above; and 

 

(b) That authority be delegated to the Chair, in consultation with the Deputy 

Chairman, to agree any output from the discussion on the future of 

regeneration funding in London. 
 

Page 7



Greater London Authority 
Regeneration Committee 

Wednesday 7 December 2016 

 

 
 

 

 
 
8   Regeneration Committee Work Programme (Item 8) 

 

8.1 The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat. 

 

8.2 Resolved: 

 

(a) That the Regeneration Committee’s updated work programme be agreed; 

 

(b) That the site visit that took place to the Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park on 

10 November 2016, as set out in paragraph 4.4 of the report, and the summary 

attached at Appendix 1 to the report, be noted; 

 

(c) That authority be delegated to the Chair, in consultation with the 

Deputy Chairman, to agree the scope for the Regeneration Committee’s 

meeting with the London Legacy Development Corporation on 19 January 

2017; and 

 

(d) That authority be delegated to the Chair, in consultation with the Deputy 

Chairman, to agree the date and arrangements for a visit to meet artists and 

residents of Hackney Wick and Stratford as part of the Regeneration 

Committee’s scrutiny of culture-led regeneration. 

 
 
9   Date of Next Meeting (Item 9) 

 

9.1 The date of the next meeting was scheduled for Thursday, 19 January 2017 at 2pm in 

Committee Room 5, City Hall. 

 
 
10   Any Other Business the Chair Considers Urgent (Item 10) 

 

10.1 There was no other business the Chair considered urgent. 

 
 
11   Close of Meeting  

 

11.1 The meeting ended at 4.06pm. 

 
 
 
 

Page 8



Greater London Authority 
Regeneration Committee 

Wednesday 7 December 2016 

 

 
 

 
 
 
    

Chair   Date 
 
Contact Officer: Joanna Brown/Teresa Young, Senior Committee Officers;  

Telephone: 020 7983 6559;  
email: joanna.brown@london.gov.uk / teresa.young@london.gov.uk 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



 

Appendix 1 
Regeneration Committee – 7 December 2016 

 
Item 6 - The Mayor’s Review of the Old Oak  

and Park Royal Development Corporation (OPDC) 
 

Navin Shah AM (Chair):   Can I welcome our guest, Fiona Fletcher-Smith, Executive Director of 

Development, Enterprise and Environment of Greater London Authority (GLA) to this meeting?  Thank you for 

coming along, and you are very welcome.  Fiona, to start with, we intend to spend about 20 minutes on this 

particular item.  For not more than five minutes, if you would like to introduce both the reason for the review 

and give us an update as to where you are on this particular review.  Thank you. 

 

Fiona Fletcher-Smith (Executive Director, Development, Enterprise and Environment, GLA):  Thank 

you, Chair.  The Mayor very soon after he was elected expressed some concerns about the nature of the deal, 

that there was an offer at Old Oak Common for the Mayoral Development Corporation (MDC).  I will just 

outline what his concerns were, and you will recognise them from the terms of reference that we have 

published for the review.   

 

He was very concerned initially whether London was getting the best possible deal from Government around 

this regeneration scheme.  Was it comparable to, say, the £97 million investment that Birmingham was getting, 

and should we go back and review the nature of the agreement with Government?  He was also concerned that 

the cost of infrastructure at £2.5 billion was considerable, and that would have a very serious impact on the 

viability of developments coming forward, and was that infrastructure actually necessary?  He wanted that to 

be tested.   

 

Also his manifesto was very clear on a desire for a 50% affordable housing target, and you will see from last 

week we published our draft Affordable Housing and Viability Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) on this.  

He wanted to make sure that the MDC’s planning policies were going to be in line with this.  He was also very 

concerned about whether the MDC as a vehicle was the right regeneration vehicle for the area, especially given 

his desires and aspirations to create Homes for Londoners, and how these two ideas could sit together.   

 

He commissioned a review, which I began work on in the middle of June, and the findings were published at 

the end of October.  The findings, unsurprisingly, found that we shared the Mayor’s concerns about the deal 

on offer, and that other cities along the High Speed 2 (HS2) route were possibly getting better deals on all of 

this.  Recognising that it is very unlikely that the Government will give us a grant to reduce the £2.5 billion, we 

wanted to explore with Government - and we are still in the process of doing that - how the land deal itself 

could be tailored in such a way to support bridging the funding gap on the infrastructure, or are there some 

devolutionary powers that we could get around - say, stamp duty or land taxation - that we could use to put 

back into the investment in the area? 

 

Secondly, he found that the infrastructure bill was too high, and we are already seeing with some of the 

planning applications coming forward - for the example, the application that is in pre-application discussion at 

the moment with Cargiant for their site - the suggestion that possibly we do not need an additional station at 

Hythe Road, given the connectivity to Willesden Junction and the new Crossrail and HS2 stations.  Again, we 

will be investigating that through the planning process, whether that is necessary. 

 

That said, the review also found that the issue of infrastructure utilities is absolutely vital as part of the 

masterplanning because it is the proper role of the public sector in an area like this to make sure that we have 

the right infrastructure in place, and that as building works are coming forward - and bearing in mind the 

construction in this area will go on for quite some time - we are building capacity in particularly the road 

Page 11



 

networks to be able to cope.  Resourcing the infrastructure work that the MDC does is also seen as very, very 

important. 

 

The Mayor felt through the review that the [OPDC] Board was overly dominated by the public sector and 

particularly too many civil servants sitting around the table, when they were also the people that we would be 

negotiating on the land deal with, so they were immediately conflicted.  There was a recommendation about 

changing the nature of the [OPDC] Board and having far more private sector involvement from more expertise 

around the [OPDC] Board, rather than just public servants and bureaucrats like myself.   

 

The work under way on the Housing SPG is now very firmly being reflected in the planning policies coming 

through from the MDC to recognise our journey towards the 50% affordable housing target.  The report also 

recommends that Transport for London (TfL) be tasked to finding a solution to the Crossrail 1 depot that is in 

a fairly central location next to the possible HS2 station, and TfL are tasked with finding a solution which 

involves either decking over it or relocating it.  They must come back with some credible proposals for the 

Mayor on that. 

 

The OPDC is being instructed to put most of its energy into the northern part of the site, which is north of the 

canal, because there is a recognition that the land to the south is tied up in various railway projects from the 

mid-2020s until the early 2030s.  The important bit there, again, is to make sure the infrastructure planning is 

done for the whole site, but that we really put some energy into helping the market bring forward the sites at 

the top within this overall master plan for the area.  

 

The importance of the work being done by both community and business representatives on the [OPDC} Board 

is really strongly recognised as part of this review, and there was a further recommendation about supporting 

them to be able to do the work they do and to be able to represent the residents there and the businesses, 

particularly in Park Royal.  The OPDC should be upping the resource that they put into that side of the work. 

 

Finally, which is a live process with the MDC at the moment through the budget-setting round, there is 

certainly scope for far more efficiencies and further shared services with particularly City Hall and TfL, and 

trying to reduce the revenue cost of the OPDC through sharing more of the services.  That is the summary of 

the outcomes.   

 

The OPDC has been tasked now with putting together an implementation plan for all of the recommendations.  

For example, the recommendation to take [HM Prison] Wormwood Scrubs outside the core area: each of these 

lines will have to have a work programme with it because that particular recommendation involves going back 

through Parliament and the regulations.  Each of these areas will have a separate work stream.   

 

The Mayor is also about to advertise for a chair for the OPDC because it is very important that the Board has a 

strong chair to drive forward these changes.  As I say, once the chair is in place, we will be bearing down on the 

implementation plan and making sure that that is pushed forward as quickly as possible.  That is all from me, 

Chair. 

 

Navin Shah AM (Chair):  Thank you very much.   

 

Tony Devenish AM:  Thank you for your summary.  It was a bit micro-level, if I can be bold.  Can I cut to the 

chase?  I think we have had this discussion already.  You need an executive chair, somebody who is a big hitter, 

somebody who has credibility with the city, in Treasury, and with all the other stakeholders and players.  Get 

that person with vision, that level, in place, and then build an organisation around that person.  I am afraid that 

we seem to be doing it the other way around at the moment.  You need a real catalyst, and I gave you some 

names as well of people I think, in terms, should be at the kind of level, people who have really done this 

Page 12



 

before.  Somebody who can stand up and face the Mayor, the Chancellor and all the other people, and say, “I 

need this”.  Otherwise, we will still be sitting here - if we are still here - in four, eight, 12 years, having this 

discussion.  We all want the same thing, which is to regenerate the site.  We need to get on with it.   

 

Fiona Fletcher-Smith (Executive Director, Development, Enterprise and Environment, GLA):  I have 

passed the very credible names you have given me on to the consultants, Green Park.  I absolutely agree.  

Having somebody in the chair and leading this is essential. 

 

Tony Devenish AM:  Thank you. 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  Just following on from that, I think it is right that there is a proper process and it is 

somebody who has not just parachuted in through the back door, to mix metaphors.  We do have to have the 

right person - I do not think there is any doubt about that - but it has to be through the proper process.  The 

fact that you have outlined that it will be advertised properly and interviewed and everything is the right way 

to go. 

 

Fiona Fletcher-Smith (Executive Director, Development, Enterprise and Environment, GLA):  It will 

be advertised this weekend.  Yes. 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  A couple of things.  Has the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with the 

Government been actually published, or is that a private document?  

 

Fiona Fletcher-Smith (Executive Director, Development, Enterprise and Environment, GLA):  It is a 

private document at this stage.1 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  There is no intention to publish it? 

 

Fiona Fletcher-Smith (Executive Director, Development, Enterprise and Environment, GLA):  I think 

it should be published when we have reviewed it, at least the highlights of it.  There will be elements of it that 

are commercially sensitive because there may be on-deals from whoever owns the land to a third party, but as 

much as possible the principles of the MoU we should be transparent about. 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  Is there any reason why it could not be printed with redactions for the numbers? 

 

Fiona Fletcher-Smith (Executive Director, Development, Enterprise and Environment, GLA):  We 

could at this stage, but given that we are significantly down the way of reviewing it, it would be more of 

historic interest than anything else. 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  What exactly is its legal force in terms of our relations with the Government?  To what 

extent are we tied into stuff we cannot get out of? 

 

Fiona Fletcher-Smith (Executive Director, Development, Enterprise and Environment, GLA):  None. 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  None? 

                                                 
1 Following the discussion on the Mayor’s Review of the Old Oak and Park Royal Development Corporation at the 
Committee’s meeting on 7 December 2016, the Executive Director, Development, Enterprise and Environment, GLA, 
clarified that the Memorandum of Understanding between the Secretary of State for the Environment and the OPDC had 
been published and had been available on the web: https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/organisations-we-work/old-
oak-and-park-royal-development-corporation-opdc/land-opdc-area-1 
 

Page 13

https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/organisations-we-work/old-oak-and-park-royal-development-corporation-opdc/land-opdc-area-1
https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/organisations-we-work/old-oak-and-park-royal-development-corporation-opdc/land-opdc-area-1


 

 

Fiona Fletcher-Smith (Executive Director, Development, Enterprise and Environment, GLA):  None 

whatsoever.  A MoU is a statement of intent from both sides about how we are going to work together, but it 

is a very useful way of outing some of the issues between ourselves and Government.   

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  The other thing I wanted to ask you:  you mentioned a point about the Crossrail 

depot, and one of the issues that has arisen around HS2 is the complete lack of preparedness for adapting 

anything to Euston.  When you go over to Euston, it is still not even on the cards for the Masterplan Phase 2.  

The Mayor is right to push Old Oak Common as a temporary terminus, a bit like Waterloo was for High 

Speed 1.  During our site visit to Old Oak Common with Victoria Hills [Chief Executive Officer for the OPDC] 

she said that it would be possible to have a temporary terminus there but there was a problem because of the 

Crossrail depot already being sited there. It would seem that re-siting the Crossrail depot would be a more 

practical option.- 

 

Fiona Fletcher-Smith (Executive Director, Development, Enterprise and Environment, GLA):  -- It is 

always more practical to come out of a terminus because otherwise you will not know it is there, but if you are 

trying to get people to come out, work in that area and transfer on to different modes of transport other than 

Crossrail 1, yes, it will make for an unattractive and incomplete development, which is why the Mayor is very 

clear in his recommendations that this is something that should have been thought of before and acted on 

before.  Therefore, it is now urgent for TfL to come up with some credible plans. 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  Is it something that can be done? 

 

Fiona Fletcher-Smith (Executive Director, Development, Enterprise and Environment, GLA):  It can 

be done, but it will cost.  That is the issue.  If we had done this before, it would have cost less. 

 

Fiona Twycross AM:  One of the advantages of having a MDC that we have heard about in the past is that all 

the different functions are looked after by one body.  What are the reasons for suggesting that the OPDC 

functions are placed within Homes for Londoners and how will it work in practice? -- 

 

Fiona Fletcher-Smith (Executive Director, Development, Enterprise and Environment, GLA):  It is 

because of where the centre for excellence and knowledges resides on doing land deals, and we already within 

City Hall have a Housing and Land Team who have very effectively looked after the GLA’s land portfolio.  What 

we were exploring with the MDC team is that the cost of then employing a land manager who would sit in the 

OPDC is extreme, when we have land managers over here in City Hall who work.  The shared services 

arrangements with human resources (HR), finance and other professional services work very well.  The idea 

would be that we would have a similar arrangement, where the housing and land team or Homes for 

Londoners, however it is badged in the end, would act as consultants in a way to Victoria [Hills, Chief 

Executive Officer, OPDC] and the team at the OPDC and act under her instructions.   

 

The main thing to guard against is what can happen is there is a residential clienting function that can get 

quite heavy back in the commissioning organisation.  It is important to make sure that that does not happen.  

Given that we are all part of the same mayoral family, you would guard against that by outsourcing it to 

another member of the family.  It seems illogical to have pockets of expertise on land and property, which are 

expensive resources, sitting in different places, doing the same thing. 

 

Fiona Twycross AM:  Yes, but given that there is quite a strong focus on housing within the overall concept, 

would the Deputy Mayor for Housing [and Residential Development] be sitting on the [OPDC} Board, for 

example, or how would that strong linkage work?  Is it simply that there would be a commissioning function to 

Homes for Londoners? 

Page 14



 

 

Fiona Fletcher-Smith (Executive Director, Development, Enterprise and Environment, GLA):  There is 

a vacancy on the [OPDC] Board currently for the GLA representative, but we want to have the Chair in place 

before we decide who that is.  It could be the Deputy Mayor for Housing [and Residential Development].  It 

could be any one of the Deputy Mayors, apart from possibly the Deputy Mayor for Planning and Regeneration 

because he will be in charge of recommending to the Mayor on the planning decisions.  The main relationship 

is that client commissioning role, so Victoria [Hills] and the team would work out exactly what they need and 

commission the team in City Hall or the Land Team in TfL, however we organise ourselves, to do this work for 

them, rather than going out, either hiring expensive staff directly themselves or hiring independent consultants 

to do it for them. 

 

Fiona Twycross AM:  Are you confident it will simplify, rather than add to bureaucracy? 

 

Fiona Fletcher-Smith (Executive Director, Development, Enterprise and Environment, GLA):  Yes.   

 

Fiona Twycross AM:  Thank you. 

 

Fiona Fletcher-Smith (Executive Director, Development, Enterprise and Environment, GLA):  I will be 

keeping a close eye on it. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Deputy Chair):  Just to follow up this theme, I understand and appreciate the desire to 

use expertise we already have, but surely those people are fully booked up now.  Is there a curse on the 

capacity, or will it leave you in the same position, having to go and hire extra capacity, or do we have that 

capacity lying dormant as it is? 

 

Fiona Fletcher-Smith (Executive Director, Development, Enterprise and Environment, GLA):  First of 

all, we need to understand what it is we are asking them to do.  I am confident that between the small number 

of staff who sit in the OPDC, who would merge in with the Land Team potentially in the future, and the team 

we have between ourselves and TfL, we should have enough expertise and capacity within the organisation.  

Again, that is something to flesh out as the MoU is revised and we know exactly what the work programme 

looks like that is associated with that.  We may, for example, conclude that doing a land deal with Government 

is not the right thing and, therefore, you downsize your resource on the back of that.  We may find that the 

land deal with Government is far more complicated than we had imagined; therefore, we up the resource.  It is 

quite early to say, but for me it is this principle of if there are experts in other organisations in the family, why 

do we not use them more effectively rather than create our own separate mini-bureaucracies all the time? 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Deputy Chair):  I understand it, but to me it sounds like you have two separate staff 

teams, and you are suggesting that one staff team really has the expertise; they are the team that have a lot of 

expertise in this area.  You are suggesting that they take on the whole piece.  Are you saying that they would 

subsume this other staff team and bring them up to scale, or would they just discard that team and end up 

having to buy in new expertise?  I do not see the extra capacity with no cost generated. 

 

Fiona Fletcher-Smith (Executive Director, Development, Enterprise and Environment, GLA):  The 

idea that we are exploring at the moment is that the existing team of three to four people in OPDC would 

merge into a City Hall team, a land team here, so that you would not see a reduction at this stage.  What I am 

saying is as we go forward and we understand exactly the nature of the work, we might then have to reduce 

the size of the whole team or upsize the whole team, and that is the bit that it is too early to say.  Just at the 

moment, it is simply looking at the team in the OPDC merging with the team here.  It is early days.  There is a 

lot of process.  It will come back to the GLA Oversight [Committee], for example, for discussion. 

 

Page 15



 

Navin Shah AM (Chair):  Fiona, a last brief comment followed by a question from me.  I am glad you 

mentioned the aspects which will relate to upping the process as well as additional resources.  On the 

governance side, I note that in the recommendations you are saying that there will be proper engagement and 

involvement of stakeholders, including residents and businesses.  That is where I think strong model work and 

sustained work will be required right throughout the process over the decades.  As the local Assembly Member 

in Brent, I know for example that already residents living around, say, the Stonebridge/Harlesden area have 

expressed concerns about what was originally dubbed as a “mini-Manhattan” approach to develop the 

neighbourhood.  That is something where the planning process will have to be very involved, whereby local 

communities understand what is being planned, what the concept is for the neighbourhood, and what will be 

the right kind of development, high-rise or what else.  Unless there is then buy-in, we will continue to have 

this major problem throughout the process.  If you would like to briefly comment on that.  The final question.  

You mentioned there is an implementation plan?   

 

Fiona Fletcher-Smith (Executive Director, Development, Enterprise and Environment, GLA):  There 

will be, yes. 

 

Navin Shah AM (Chair):  There will be, yes.  If you can give us a bit of an idea when you reckon that will be 

published, and work streams to go with that.  Can you expand on that, please? 

 

Fiona Fletcher-Smith (Executive Director, Development, Enterprise and Environment, GLA):  I will 

comment on the work plan first and then work back to the issue of community engagement.  The work plan 

has one particular element that is slightly tied up in another process, which is the budget-setting process.  

Although Victoria [Hills] and her team will work on a draft plan at the moment, until we have gone through the 

budget process and set her revenue and capital budget for the coming year, she cannot finalise that plan.  We 

will start to share drafts of that from February 2017 onwards, but the plan itself will not then be finally signed 

off until the budget is signed off by the Mayor and Assembly process.  Again, that is something that I would 

see as a public document.  One thing that I did over the summer was spend a lot of time out in Old Oak talking 

to community groups and business groups and residents’ groups, and one thing that struck me was a real need 

for proper transparency about what is going on in the area.  There was a real push from the local community 

on planning issues and a sense that because the OPDC is a new organisation - and, OK, it is bound by the 

quasi-judicial approach of the planning system - there were areas where they could really work on best practice 

and doing things really differently.  They are going to test this out, I am sure, during the Local Plan preparation 

process.  Planning is an area where they could do far more in terms of community engagement.   

 

The problem is a conversation that involves a £2.5 billion infrastructure bill versus a desire to have nice 

three-storey houses, and how that viability is impacted on by the infrastructure bill.  If you are having a proper, 

grown-up conversation with people who live in the area in a transparent and honest way, understanding those 

trade-offs becomes that much easier. 

 

Navin Shah AM (Chair):  Fiona, thank you very much for your attendance and for your very helpful and 

positive contribution to our discussion.   

 

Fiona Fletcher-Smith (Executive Director, Development, Enterprise and Environment, GLA):  Thank 

you very much. 

Page 16



 

 

 

Appendix 2 
 

Regeneration Committee – 7 December 2016 
 

Transcript of Item 7 – The Future of Regeneration Funding 
 

Navin Shah AM (Chair):  If we can move on to item 7, which is the future of regeneration funding, and 

therefore welcome our guests.  If I can introduce, we have Debbie Jackson, who is the Assistant Director of 

Regeneration at the Greater London Authority (GLA); Alex Conway, who is the European Programmes Director 

at the GLA; we have Richard Simpson, who is the Executive Director of Resources of London Borough of 

Croydon; and last but not least, Cath Shaw, who is the Deputy Chief Executive of London Borough of Barnet.  

Thank you very much for coming along to this session.   

 

If we can start with Debbie, overall what are the lessons GLA has learnt from the outcomes of the main 

regeneration programme?   

 

Debbie Jackson (Assistant Director, Regeneration, GLA):  Thank you, Chair.  We have had a 

Regeneration Team in City Hall since 2012 and have run funding programmes since before that within the 

London Development Agency (LDA) and transferred across in the GLA.  Over the course of that time, we have 

always made sure that the regeneration programmes that we deliver go through evaluation processes which are 

independent so that we can learn from them.  What I will not do is take you through each of the programmes 

and the learnings relevant to each of the programmes, but I will try to draw some themes from across our 

learning that I think are relevant to the discussion today. 

 

Just to recap on how we distribute our funding, in the main we distribute our funding by putting out calls for 

projects, historically to other public sector bodies, but more recently drawing in other organisations as well.  

Our funding is distributed through a competitive process.  Also, it is just worth knowing as well that the 

majority of our funding is capital, so that does have an impact on our lessons learnt because capital money is 

spent in a particular way on particular kinds of projects.   

 

Some of the lessons that we have learnt: the first one that I would talk about is about taking a realistic 

approach to programme and project delivery.  The nature of a competitive programme is that people will want 

to win, and they will obviously set out their stall in terms of what can be delivered.  We, as a team, have learnt 

that, firstly, people do that, but also to work with delivery partners to make sure that outcomes and objectives 

are realistic and that they can be delivered over the life of the project.  We have learnt that for a range of very 

good reasons sometimes projects will change, reduce or stop, and as a result, in the interests of continuing to 

deliver the overall objectives of the programme, it is in our interests to hold projects in reserve.  We do not just 

set off with exactly the amount that we have, but we have projects in reserve for when things change and 

funding gets released.   

 

On a similar note, we have learnt that it is important in our approvals to build in flexibility to enable us to 

respond to changing circumstances as well, so that we are not held up from doing good things by the need to 

get approval on points of relative detail.   

 

We have learnt - and we spoke about this at the last Regeneration Committee [on 13 October 2016] - the 

importance of working with our target market, if you like, in the development of proposals and ideas, and the 

importance of making sure that that is a process that as broad a spectrum of potential bidders as possible can 

engage with.   

Page 17



 

 

 

 

We have worked hard to innovate and iterate our programmes so we are not doing the same now as we were 

five years ago.  We are looking around at the context, looking at what is available to us in terms of the tools 

and the ideas within London and beyond.  We have tried to apply that learning. 

 

Streamlining processes.  We are very aware that dealing with the public sector can feel like a barrier to 

engaging with us, and we have worked very hard to be proportionate in our processes and to try to streamline 

and tailor them in a way that is proportionate to the funding that we are offering.  I have already spoken about 

supporting the application stage.  I will leave it at that in terms of cross-cutting lessons learnt. 

 

Navin Shah AM (Chair):  Do you think that current approaches are top-down or bottom-up? 

 

Debbie Jackson (Assistant Director, Regeneration, GLA):  We have a range of programmes that we have 

offered.  We spoke at length about the crowdfunding programme at the last Committee, and that is a very 

intentional effort to be bottom-up, to generate ideas from London and to work with Londoners.  Clearly, that 

is a targeted attempt to try to engage Londoners from the broadest spectrum, from a bottom-up perspective.  

In our work with local authorities, we do have a degree of top-down-ness insofar as when we put a prospectus 

out, we set out a range of outcomes we are looking to achieve, but what we do not do is tell them how to 

achieve them.  The local authorities are the best people to understand their local context.  We describe the 

broad outcomes that funding may be trying to achieve, but what we really want is to hear the ideas from the 

local stakeholders and the delivery partners.  I do not think it is particularly top-down.  We could be an awful 

lot more top-down, and we do not think that is the right thing to do.  We want to use our funding to deliver 

the broad outcomes, but to harness the ideas and the expertise where the expertise best lies, if that makes 

sense.   

 

Navin Shah AM (Chair):  Moving on, what do you think will be different in the Mayor’s approach to new 

funding programmes? 

 

Debbie Jackson (Assistant Director, Regeneration, GLA):  There is a limit to what I can say, and we will 

come on to talk about funding, but I do not want to prejudge the outcome of the budget-setting process.  I 

will have to talk in fairly broad terms.  In particular, looking at the manifesto and A City for all Londoners, what 

we know is that there is a strong priority on social impact and social outcomes.  We are doing some work at the 

moment to understand how our programmes deliver on social outcomes because it is not something that we 

really measured to any great degree under the former administration.  We are doing some work particularly in 

respect to high streets, to understand the role that high streets play in London’s social fabric, if you like, and 

to understand how our funding can improve social impact and outcomes for local people.  We are also doing 

some work to understand what kind of metrics we may be able to use in order to respond to the Mayor’s 

priorities.  It is difficult for me to talk in any more detail about the direction the funding programmes may take 

while we are waiting for budgets to be confirmed. 

 

Tony Devenish AM:  Debbie, I do not disagree with anything that you have said, but it is all quite general.  

Have you done almost a secret shopper survey of chief executives, council leaders, developers and other major 

stakeholders to be blunt with you and tell you what you do well and what you do not do well?  That is what 

they tell me.  It is those very blunt messages: “You did this really well.  You did that really badly”.  I will give 

you an example.  I will not name the body or the type of person, but I got feedback a couple of years ago 

where literally you guys were busy, the team - I will not say if it is a developer or a council team - came in to 

see you on a key project, and most of your team were not there on that particular day.  The feedback came 

back to me and others which was, “We put all this effort into doing X, Y and Z, and they did not engage”.  I am 

Page 18



 

 

 

sure you engaged subsequently, but it is that blunt feedback from chief executive officers, council leaders and 

developers.  Do you get that? 

 

Debbie Jackson (Assistant Director, Regeneration, GLA):  It would be interesting to have the views of 

the local authorities at the table, but we carry out evaluations and we do not do them.  Whichever body we 

engage to do those evaluations goes and speaks to the boroughs without us in the room.  Of course we then 

receive that feedback, and of course the boroughs know we have appointed them, so it is not quite secret 

shopper in the pure sense of the word, but it is an independent evaluation.  We do have some quite robust 

discussions with them.  For example, Regeneris have done some of our evaluations.  We have some discussions 

with them about what they are hearing back, and it is a very honest and open discussion.   

 

Generally speaking - and I would say this - I would say we have a very positive relationship with local 

authorities, built up very carefully over the last five years.  That has gone faster in some places than others, 

and we will be very interested to hear the local authorities speaking but we feel we have a good relationship.  

Of course I would want to respond to individual instances of feedback - by all means tell me about that one - 

but we do carry out evaluation work that is independent.  It is not just us asking people.   

 

Fiona Twycross AM:  Particularly if you are going to have a shift on focus to social outcomes, people in the 

past may have bid for money or tried to secure funding from the GLA.  Will you be going back to some of the 

people who have bid in the past, who may have been put off going through the process again, to just revisit 

whether they would change it slightly or if they were to put a subsequent bid in for a similar or slightly 

different project, that there might be scope?  My concern is, particularly if you think about the subject of the 

meeting on crowdfunding, there were a lot of projects.  There were not a lot from outer London, or there were 

quite a lot from outer London that had been rejected where bids had gone in.  Would you be revisiting those 

groups and talking to them about it a bit more as part of your relaunching of the work your team is doing? 

 

Debbie Jackson (Assistant Director, Regeneration, GLA):  Yes and no, insofar as when we have to give 

bidders the unfortunate news that they have not been successful, we always do that with feedback at the time.  

I suppose, in our view, that is the best time to do it because it is fresh in your mind and it gives you an 

opportunity to develop it further.  In fact, in some cases we are still working with people on bids that were not 

successful for whatever reason, but in some cases they are not successful because they are just not ready.  

That does not mean that they will not be ready at some point.  We do continue relationships, and we have 

relationships with all of the London boroughs.  Some of those discussions are around funded programmes, and 

lots of them are not.  We do continue that dialogue with local authorities. 

 

As far as the crowdfunding is concerned, one of the interesting things after I met you last time is that the 

mapping that I think you had in front of you at that meeting did not have our Round 3 on.  If you look at that, 

as time goes on, we are seeing a better representation of other communities.  I have to be mindful of resource 

within my team, and crowdfunding in particular is a lot of projects and a lot of discussions.  There is a limit to 

what we can supply to those organisations, but we do have other tools at our disposal, such as the Specialist 

Assistance Team, which perhaps I will talk about a bit later.  We are also doing our best to facilitate networking 

between projects as well, because some of the best learning is project-to-project, rather than us going to the 

projects and telling them what we think.  We are doing the best we can to facilitate that. 

 

Fiona Twycross AM:  Thank you. 

 

Page 19



 

 

 

Navin Shah AM (Chair):  The current Mayor has a somewhat different approach to regeneration.  For 

example, he sees culture and the creative industries as a means to regenerate.  Given that sort of approach, do 

you think that the new programmes will be different in their scope as well as scale to the current ones? 

 

Debbie Jackson (Assistant Director, Regeneration, GLA):  I think we will see differences.  The culture 

and creative industries have always been a very strong thread through our programmes.  We did a piece of 

work on culture in the high street and we did a network event around that and produced a publication around  

that.  Our most recent funds on affordable workspace have funded a number of creative affordable 

workspaces, but it has not been as strong a theme and as strong a priority as it is now.  I think we will see, 

subject to getting some confirmation of budgets, a strong emphasis on culture and creative industries.   

 

Other areas.  Again, if we look at the manifesto and A City for all Londoners, there are clear priorities for the 

Mayor.  The wording in the manifesto is around the character of high streets, and I am clear in discussion with 

the mayoral team that that is a broad interpretation of character around the social, civic and economic role of 

high streets, rather than a narrow heritage definition.  Affordable workspace I have already mentioned as well, 

and obviously culture as well.   

 

In terms of the scale, until I get my budgets confirmed, it is very difficult for me to answer that question.   

 

Navin Shah AM (Chair):  My final question.  This is very important for the Committee.  What further support 

will be given to boroughs that are not currently benefiting from major regeneration investments? 

 

Debbie Jackson (Assistant Director, Regeneration, GLA):  The way my team is organised, this particular 

part of my team is on an area basis.  Every local authority has a named officer that they have a working 

relationship with, so that officer is there to work with the local authority’s regeneration team, as I said, both on 

funded and unfunded regeneration projects and programmes.  We also have the Specialist Assistance Team, 

which is the pre-procured panel of experts, who are available for local authorities to draw upon in a very 

modest way, but to bring expertise to a particular regeneration project at the point it needs it.  To describe 

what that feels like, you can be in a discussion with a local authority and a project may reach a point where 

they think, “Do you know what?  We could really do with just a little bit of expert help on - I do not know - our 

engagement strategy”, for example.  Instead of having to write a brief, work out who you want to invite and go 

through all of that month-long process, we have already done that procurement and we have a modest budget 

available for local authorities to be able to draw on that help to come and support projects that are there for 

them.  That is trying to remove the barrier of procurement and provide some modest funding in order to help 

regeneration projects move forward, overcome barriers and be as good as they can be as well.   

 

We also put a lot of effort into producing guidance or best practice where we feel there are particular 

challenges.  We have done it before on affordable workspace, on meanwhile uses, for example, and we also run 

a range of networking events.  As it becomes clear what the business plan looks like for next year, we will 

design a range of engagement and collaboration opportunities that bring together peers across the 

regeneration field to discuss ideas and develop their projects as well. 

 

Navin Shah AM (Chair):  Thank you.   

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Deputy Chair):  I just want to speak to the boroughs, mainly, and ask questions.  From a 

borough perspective, what would you like to see as the Mayor’s focus in terms of delivery for future 

regeneration projects? 

 

Page 20



 

 

 

Richard Simpson (Executive Director of Resources, London Borough of Croydon):  Thanks for the 

question, and thanks for inviting me.  I will touch on the question from earlier at this point as well, about the 

borough’s perspective on work to date.  Most of my work with the team here has been around the more 

strategic projects like the growth zone, which is our Tax Incremental Financing (TIF)-like model for 

infrastructure investment in Croydon, which we might get on to later in the agenda.   

 

As Debbie [Jackson] said, where it has worked best for us is there has been real flexibility.  Although we have 

had plans agreed and it can be a two-or three-year programme, towards the end of those two or three years,  

 

local priorities have maybe changed or opportunities have come along, and sometimes it has been the smaller 

investments that have made a real difference.  The GLA and Debbie’s team have been really up for those as 

they come along.  We had an investment in turning a council building into a technology hub for small and 

medium enterprises, for example, which was not on the agenda when we first bid for money, but at the point it 

came along made a lot of sense.  It made sense to both parties.  The private sector was interested, and that has 

now gone in and is one of the biggest successes, but it is probably only about 5% of the total programmes.  

There is definitely that flexibility there.  With my experience - because I worked in Lambeth probably ten or 12 

years ago, earlier in my career - working with TfL and doing grant claims, it was a very different environment 

there in terms of flexibility or lack of flexibility.  You could not carry money over between you.  Both sides have 

come a long way since then in terms of working together in a completely different way and having much more 

flexibility. 

 

We have had a lot of support in the last few years, which has been great for Croydon.  Where we would like to 

see the attention going further in policy terms, selfishly for Croydon, is around more of an outer London focus, 

I think, on the programme, and seeing outer London as potentially an economic driver for London and not just 

dealing with issues and problems that inner London maybe cannot tackle.  A real focus for how you can have 

hubs in outer London that can really deliver the economic growth and the jobs and homes that London needs.  

That is our wish.  We are making that pitch and having that dialogue, but that is where we would like to see 

the focus of the investment going. 

 

Cath Shaw (Deputy Chief Executive, London Borough of Barnet):  You have invited London’s two 

largest-population boroughs, both of which are outer London boroughs, to talk to you, so I suppose we should 

take heart from that that you do see that outer London is a huge opportunity for delivering economic growth 

and housing growth and regeneration.  Obviously, I would absolutely endorse that; please do continue to focus 

on outer London. 

 

One of the couple of things I would pick up on terms of going forward is a continued emphasis on town 

centres.  I would say for perhaps some of the first rounds of outer London fund we were all learning and it was 

a little bit hit-and-miss, but over the years, since then, I think Debbie’s [Jackson] team has developed some 

real expertise in how you can really target that town centre investment to make it stick and make the biggest 

impact.  We would certainly want to see the continuation of those schemes because it is a constant cycle of 

refreshing and needing to invest in those town centres.  Some of the ones that got the early outer London 

funding are now coming back to us and saying, “We need another push at this”.  We would say that.   

 

It is slightly outside of the GLA, but it is fantastic news that TfL has really now got the message that it needs 

to play its role in housing delivery.  I do not think there is a borough in London that is not pleased that it has 

come to that party.  There is a bit of a worry that it is very numbers-focused at the moment, and there is a risk 

that it will be creating the regeneration challenges of the future if we do not see a little bit more emphasis on 

quality place-making from TfL colleagues.  The headline message is that it is great that they are around the 

Page 21



 

 

 

table now, but we would definitely want to see a regeneration focus as well as a pure housing delivery and 

housing numbers focus.   

 

An issue for the London Plan would be industrial space.  We have seen a lot more industrial space to be 

released for housing at a much quicker rate than we expected.  Again, housing is clearly such a huge challenge 

facing the city, that is right, but we do now need to be thinking about how we preserve, protect and get the 

most benefit out of our industrial space. 

 

The final thing is that I have not heard a great deal from the Mayor, and it may be the way the public 

presentation is coming across.  I realise I am on slightly controversial territory perhaps with 

Mr [Andrew] Dismore here, but we have not heard a great deal from the Mayor about estate regeneration and  

his approach to estates.  That is something that we need not to lose sight of because there are still estates 

within London that are in need of investment.  We, as local boroughs, are continuing to look at that.  It is not 

to say that the Mayor is not committed to it, but I have not heard as much from City Hall about that as about 

some other issues.  That would be my other issue to flag. 

 

Tony Devenish AM:  Is there one specific project from Barnet and Croydon that you would say is the project 

where the GLA really helped you get it shovel-ready, and what specifically did they do? 

 

Cath Shaw (Deputy Chief Executive, London Borough of Barnet):  Brent Cross is the obvious one, and I 

know it is referenced in your papers.  The support we had from Fiona [Fletcher-Smith] and her team on that 

and from David Gallie [Assistant Director, Group Finance] within the finance side of the organisation was 

fantastic.  It was absolutely fundamental in terms of securing Government support, but the council and the City 

Hall were standing absolutely shoulder to shoulder.  We did a lot of work in terms of the case, but we also did a 

lot of work on lobbying.  To be able to have the City Hall team at officer level, official level, the City Hall team 

at political level and the borough at political and officer level all co-ordinating their message to Government 

was hugely powerful.  That would be the one -- 

 

Tony Devenish AM:  Just to be specific, they helped in putting the financial case together, they were their 

experts, and they helped with the political lobbying.  Is that what you are saying? 

 

Cath Shaw (Deputy Chief Executive, London Borough of Barnet):  No, no.  The council put the financial 

case together.  I would say that David [Gallie] and his team provided very useful, critical-framed challenge, 

made sure that it was a really robust case, but we did the hard yards on building the case.  What was very 

helpful was the help in lobbying the Government in a co-ordinated way and being clear that this was a project 

that was important to London, not just a project that was important to Barnet. 

 

Richard Simpson (Executive Director of Resources, London Borough of Croydon):  In that same space, 

the Croydon growth zone is a similar financial model to the Brent Cross model.  Therefore, being able to 

piggyback on that in terms of the knowledge from the Finance Team at the GLA and also the knowledge of 

who to speak to in terms of the Department for Communities and Local Government and the Department for 

Business, Innovation and Skills (BIS) and getting us at the table was really important for us.  In that sense, the 

GLA were also giving up their business rates to support that model, which is hugely important because the 

model will not work without it.  It felt like a real partnership with shared objectives around that one.   

 

The one I touched on before, which was about an £800,000 investment in a council building to turn the 

ground floor into a café and the first floor into space for local technology businesses, has had a real impact and 

made a real difference.  It was not in the original programme.  We had to negotiate with the GLA.  It was their 

Page 22



 

 

 

flexibility to redirect funds into something that they believed in - in that case quite quickly - in order for us to 

procure the partner.  That is now open and working really well.  That one was agility to deliver what worked at 

that time.   

 

Tony Devenish AM:  Can I just ask a follow-up question?  Do you have the feeling that certainly I am getting 

from this current administration, that it is going to be housing, housing and more housing, bluntly?  

Particularly on delivering your affordable units, are you getting that drive that that is what you are going to be 

particularly focused on, working with the GLA going forward? 

 

Richard Simpson (Executive Director of Resources, London Borough of Croydon):  That is something 

that we are very focused on locally from the administration in Croydon as well.  We have our own development 

company on housing and we have a 50% affordable housing target.  Anyway, that is one of the main focuses  

of our regeneration.  The other big focus of working with the GLA will be on deciding exactly where the 

£300 million of investment in the growth zone is spent and what the priorities are, so that probably separates 

us from lots of other London boroughs in having that piece with the GLA as well. 

 

Debbie Jackson (Assistant Director, Regeneration, GLA):  If you do not mind me jumping in, it is worth 

making the point that the two of you are not mutually exclusive, because the whole point of the growth zone 

investment is in order to unlock growth.  That is what these funding models exist to do.  All of our work goes 

to the overall priorities of unlocking growth, but the growth zone in particular is based on the premise that that 

growth can only be delivered if the infrastructure investment happens, so they are related. 

 

Fiona Twycross AM:  Mine is a question for Debbie.  Could you update the Committee about the likely new 

funding programmes arising from the autumn statement? 

 

Debbie Jackson (Assistant Director, Regeneration, GLA):  I would love to, but I cannot.  I can tell you 

what I do know, what has been announced.  This is Growth Deal 3.  Just by way of background, the Growth 

Deal is the means by which we have had funding to deliver the investment programme in the college estate, 

the further education estate, and also the London Regeneration Fund, which is currently delivering, and the 

crowdfund at the moment.  That was Growth Deals 1 and 2.  Growth Deal 3, Government confirmed 

£1.8 billion.  We were invited to bid in for £1.8 billion funding, of which half was for transport which was not 

available to London because we have different arrangements for transport funding in London.  We bid into 

that, and in the autumn statement Government confirmed £492 million for London and the south east.  What 

we are waiting for is an announcement on the London allocation of that.   

 

In terms of regeneration, the key area that we bid for was a programme called Supporting London’s Local 

Economies, which is where we would look to to fund some of the programmes I have talked about today 

around high streets, around affordable workspace, and around the crowdfunding as well, but we are waiting for 

that to be announced. 

 

Fiona Twycross AM:  What is the timescale for that? 

 

Debbie Jackson (Assistant Director, Regeneration, GLA):  We understand before Christmas. 

 

Fiona Twycross AM:  OK.  

 

Page 23



 

 

 

Tony Devenish AM:  I think I am also asking a bit of a crystal ball question to Debbie.  What is the Mayor’s 

thinking in terms of his priorities for regeneration funding for the remainder of this term, and how might the 

Mayor refocus the London Enterprise Panel (LEP), please? 

 

Debbie Jackson (Assistant Director, Regeneration, GLA):  Taking those slightly in turn, I have touched 

on this a little bit, and I am very happy to come back at a future meeting with more detail when the business 

plan for next year is confirmed.  Looking at the manifesto and A City for all Londoners, the priorities I believe 

are going to be around culture and the role of culture in regeneration.  Indeed, we are working extremely 

closely with the culture team on some of their work as well, protecting the character of high streets, the 

importance of affordable workspace.  There are also commitments in the manifesto around world-class public 

spaces, inclusion and engagement.  I cannot give you specifics about the funding programmes, but in terms of 

the themes that will underpin them, I think it will be along those kinds of themes.  I should also add to that 

that I anticipate we will retain the capital funding programme around the college estate, so the further 

education estate as well.  It is also worth adding that the Growing Places Fund is a revolving fund, so we will 

also see funding coming back in from that as well, hopefully. 

 

In terms of the LEP, the Mayor has reconstituted the LEP, reducing the membership from 22 down to 16, and 

wants to make it more representative of London’s business community.  A key point is that small businesses 

are intended to play a much greater role.  I believe an announcement on the membership of the LEP is 

imminent - maybe that is another Christmas present - within the next few days even, and then the LEP will 

hopefully fairly quickly move into its first meetings so it can decide for itself its strategic priorities.  The LEP 

has responsibility for the Growth Deal funding I just talked about and also the Royal Docks Enterprise Zone as 

well.  They also have responsibility for delivering the London Growth Hub, which is the LEP’s online business 

support portal.  We know, broadly speaking, the tools it will have in its toolbox, but in terms of the LEP’s 

priorities, that will be for discussion with the LEP when it forms early in the New Year. 

 

Tony Devenish AM:  Can I follow up?  Is there anything from adjoining LEPs around London that you have 

looked at and thought, “That is quite a good idea.  We should look at that”?  I am trying to get more into 

specifics, rather than into generalities, which I know is difficult at this time in the cycle. 

 

Debbie Jackson (Assistant Director, Regeneration, GLA):  There are a couple of discussions there.  We 

do talk very much through Croydon about the relationship down south and with Coast to Capital and others.  

We have been involved in some discussions in particular around transport - being a south Londoner, I feel this 

very keenly - and the weaknesses in the transport infrastructure.  I know that certainly Croydon feels that that 

is one of the big threats to Croydon’s growth.  That is a strategic discussion.  That is not just a London 

discussion.  It is beyond.  That is a discussion that we have been involved with.   

 

The other key discussion that I would tell you about is east London and out to the Thames Estuary linking into 

the commission [Thames Estuary 2050 Growth Commission] that is taking place at the moment.  Under the 

Culture Team’s work, they have been talking about - and we are working on - a Thames Gateway production 

corridor, which looks at the role of east London and the Thames Gateway in terms of production in a broad 

sense of the word, in terms of making, in terms of supporting the creative industries.  That is very much a 

discussion that has taken place with the LEPs outside London as well. 

 

Tony Devenish AM:  Thank you. 

 

Navin Shah AM (Chair):  Can I ask whether there is likely to be renewed focus on outer London boroughs?  I 

entirely agree with our guests’ comments about the importance of outer London boroughs and that they need 

Page 24



 

 

 

that additional capacity and focus when it comes to regeneration, including estate regeneration as well.  Is this 

something the Mayor is likely to focus upon strongly? 

 

Debbie Jackson (Assistant Director, Regeneration, GLA):  I do not think it is a discussion that we have 

had explicitly about outer and inner London.  If you look at the priorities that are emerging around the things 

that I have discussed, around affordable workspace, around town centres and high streets, logic dictates that a 

lot of those projects lie and the opportunities and the needs lie in outer London.  Whether the business plan 

for next year will explicitly target outer London or whether the outcomes will result in a natural focus on outer 

London I cannot say, but it has always been the case with our work that we have done a lot of work with outer 

London and certainly less in super-central London.  I know there is inner-outer or outer-inner London, which 

we have perhaps had a lot of activity with.  It is difficult for me to say at the moment but I think we will 

naturally support a lot of activity in outer London. 

 

Navin Shah AM (Chair):  It is just that as an elected Member representing outer London boroughs, from my 

experience and knowledge, there are two issues there that we need to target.  One is the gaps in regeneration 

activities and capacity-building.   

 

Debbie Jackson (Assistant Director, Regeneration, GLA):  Yes. 

 

Navin Shah AM (Chair):  Having said that, can we move on to three questions that I believe Andrew has? 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  They are on the estate regeneration issue.  Cath [Shaw] will not be surprised if I do.  

One of the issues in Barnet - and Cath will no doubt disagree - has been, to my mind, the very low proportion 

of social rented who have lost social rented and affordable as a result of regeneration.  The other is the lack of 

the infrastructure that goes with it.  This is not just estate regeneration.  Also, if we take the example I gave 

earlier of Millbrook Park up in Mill Hill, we have 2,500, 2,300 - or something like that in round terms - 

properties coming but there is no infrastructure to support it.  We have Mill Hill East Tube Station, which is a 

basket case already given the volume of traffic, which is going to get even worse with all the regeneration is 

going on.   

 

Two things from outer London.  Is the Mayor going to be looking at this in terms of supporting estate 

regeneration, with a view to the 50% affordable housing target, and secondly to make sure that these projects 

are properly sustainable with the infrastructure they need?  Including, in particular transport but also a whole 

lot of other bits that go with it, such as retail so they have somewhere to go shopping, social facilities and so 

on.   

 

Debbie Jackson (Assistant Director, Regeneration, GLA):  We are outside my area but I will make one 

comment, if I can.  Genuinely, a combination of housing and planning officers are the better people to respond 

to that, but I will make one comment in terms of infrastructure.  It is very useful to have Croydon here because 

one of the things that we were both very keen on is the growth zone.   

 

The growth zone is underpinned by a Development Infrastructure Funding Study that looks at the range of 

infrastructure that is required to support growth.  We very intentionally made sure that that was not just the 

obvious infrastructure, not just transport, utilities and things like that.  It includes social infrastructure as well.  

That is an acknowledgment of the importance of social infrastructure.  That social infrastructure in itself is 

quite broad, from the perhaps more obvious things like schools through to playgrounds and childcare facilities, 

the range of things a community needs to be a sustainable and positive community.  That exercise, the 

Development Infrastructure Funding Study, has been repeated in a number of strategic locations.  We will be 

Page 25



 

 

 

doing one shortly on Old Kent Road as well.  In terms of perhaps smaller-scale and more site-based or 

development scheme-based considerations, that really is outside my area.   

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  I would be happy if you just had the obvious stuff, never mind all the cuddly, feely 

stuff as well, which is important.  The other point I was going to ask about is in relation to high streets and the 

importance of high street regeneration.  One of the issues when we looked at this in the Economy Committee 

years ago was the problem of the huge diversity of ownership on a high street.  It was very difficult to get 

anything done because you have 100 shops and they are owned by 95 different people.  That is the sort of 

problem that needs to be overcome.  Are you going to look at some more radical solutions to try to tackle 

some of these things?   

 

If you look at high streets, why does Regent Street work?  Because it is all owned by the Crown Estate.  Why 

do some of the other high streets not work?  Because you just cannot get anything done.  Nobody can agree 

on anything, if you can find the owners in the first place.  Most of them are overseas.   

 

Debbie Jackson (Assistant Director, Regeneration, GLA):  Yes.  One of the projects that we are involved 

with - and we put a small amount of funding towards as part of the London Reservation Fund - is a partnership 

with the British Property Federation, I am pretty sure, and other partners, looking at a Town Centre Investment 

Management model that looks at exactly this challenge.  One of the barriers to successful high streets and 

enabling growth in high streets is the range of ownership.  That project took a number of pilot locations across  

the country - there is one in London - and modelled what it would look like in order to try to address that, in 

order to try to pool ownerships, curate the town centre and unlock growth.  That is a discussion that is very live 

at the moment.  It is something that we will talk to you about in future.  We are acutely aware of that.    

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  Does that include things like compulsory purchase orders? 

 

Debbie Jackson (Assistant Director, Regeneration, GLA):  That is one possible route to achieving that.   

 

Cath Shaw (Deputy Chief Executive, London Borough of Barnet):  Can I just comment on that?  The 

Policy and Resources Committee of Barnet Council last week approved unanimously a proposal to trial a very 

similar approach in North Finchley High Street, looking at working with a well-funded private partner to work 

alongside those landlords who are present and engaged and buy out those landlords who are remote or 

disengaged.  We have a live experiment. 

 

Debbie Jackson (Assistant Director, Regeneration, GLA):  They have been in to talk to us as well.  I did 

not mention it because I was not sure it was public. 

 

Cath Shaw (Deputy Chief Executive, London Borough of Barnet):  No, it is in the public domain now. 

 

Debbie Jackson (Assistant Director, Regeneration, GLA):  OK.  That is another example. 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  You can talk to me too.   

 

Debbie Jackson (Assistant Director, Regeneration, GLA):  We all know who we are talking about, 

though.   

 

Page 26



 

 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  I will carry on to my main question, which is not about that.  Alex has been sitting 

there very patiently.  It is about the European Union (EU), a broad question.  How does the EU support 

regeneration in London? 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  Basically there are three main ways worth 

highlighting.  The first is loans from the European Investment Bank (EIB), the EU’s bank.  They have loaned a 

few billion to TfL for Crossrail projects.  They have boosted utilities to boroughs for some new housing, and 

green infrastructure as well on the projects for which I am responsible. 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  OK.  Hold that thought.  Do you have an idea of how many billions -- 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  We can get the information.  Last time we got a list 

from the EIB, in the last ten years it was £6 billion or £7 billion, from memory.  We can get you that. 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  It would be useful to actually know. 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  We do know, I just do not have it with me, sorry. 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  I will not ask you the terms of the loan.  The next question that follows on from that, 

before we move on to the other stuff, is: if we leave the EU, does that make it difficult for us to borrow from 

the EIB or not? 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  They do lend to people outside the EU.  It is one of 

those things that would be negotiable as part of Brexit negotiations, I surmise.  It is reasonable to suggest that  

 

they are probably less likely to lend in such quantum as they do at present.   

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  OK.  It has to be part of the Brexit negotiations.   

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  The second way is our participation in transnational 

programmes.  That is where organisations bid direct to Brussels, usually as part of a consortium of transnational 

partners.  It can be nine or ten.  A well-known example is the Horizon 2020 programme.  Some London 

universities are going to benefit to the tune of several hundreds of millions of pounds. 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  We do not know how many hundreds of millions? 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  It is all on the EU’s website.  The likes of Imperial 

College London, King’s College London and University College London have had programmes in operation over 

the last few years that have been quite successful. 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  If you could track that number down as well, that would also be helpful. 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  We can dig that out.  They are clearly very 

concerned.  Again, just following on, might we participate in those programmes post-Brexit?  It is still to be 

determined.  I think the Mayor’s and others’ view would be that a programme like Horizon 2020 would 

certainly be something we would want to argue for.   

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  Yes.  Switzerland got thrown out. 

Page 27



 

 

 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  Yes.  The third part of the programme for which I 

am directly responsible are the European Structural and Investment Funds.  They form the largest part of the 

EU’s seven-year, trillion-euro budget, along with the European Social Fund (ESF) programmes and the 

European Regional Development Fund (ERDF).  The way this funding works, all 28 member states get it.  The 

poorest get the most, the wealthiest get the least.  The poorest can use it in more flexible ways.  We have to 

use it in certain ways.  The ERDF in London, which is probably of most interest to this Committee, goes 

towards job creation, help for small businesses and green infrastructure programmes.  The ESF, which is a big 

fund, is around skills and getting people not in employment, education or training into employment, education 

or training.   

 

In terms of directly supporting regeneration, certainly it was the case in the days of the LDA that quite a lot of 

European money went on remediating land in the Thames Gateway area that now has things built on it, places 

like the Albert Basin.  The funding is more revenue than capital.  There was a project just last week that the 

Mayor opened in Lewisham, a workspace project.  The capital funding came from the LEP but there is revenue 

funding to come, providing business support in the next couple of years.  It is a nice little example there of 

capital and revenue. 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  That is the ERDF, not the ESF? 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  The ESF is all skills and employment funding.  It is 

several hundred million pounds over the next seven years. 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  About £685 million between the two? 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  Yes.   

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  Right.  We have that number, anyway. 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  It is €745 million, actually, so it depends on the 

exchange rate, and it is a notional allocation.   

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  The way the exchange rate is going, that is helpful. 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  It is helpful, but also it is notional.  It is at the 

Government’s whim.  It is different from in the past, when London had a set allocation you could not change.  

The way we give out most ESF funding is through co-financing organisations.  The National Offender 

Management Service -- 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  You say it is Government-linked?  “At the whim of?” 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  Yes.   

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  OK.  Has London had that money committed to us or is that still up for grabs? 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  It is the way the Government has chosen to 

manage the ERDF and the ESF this time round.  In the past there were separate regional ERDF programmes.  

Now we have a single English ESF programme and a single English ERDF programme.  Within those single 

Page 28



 

 

 

programmes, notional allocations have been given to each of what I think are now the 38 local enterprise 

partnership areas.  There is no sign the Government is intending to change those notional allocations as of yet.  

If you were to compare how we are committing our funding in comparison with other LEP areas, you would see 

we have committed a good deal more funding than most other areas. 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  We have a figure of 85%.  Is that right? 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  That is right for ERDF, yes.   

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  Right, OK.  That is 85% of the ERDF.  The ERDF is 25% of the total whole? 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  Yes. 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  Right.  The other 75% has not -- 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  Again, you cannot commit that all in one go, even 

if you wanted to, because it works in three-year cycles.  We have committed the half of the programme that 

we set out to commit.  We intend to commit the other half.  That will depend, as we might come on to, on how 

Brexit negotiations play out.   

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  Right.  That is the next question.  What happens to all this money post-Brexit? 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  Post-Brexit.  The story is that after the referendum, 

the Government did not overtly announce anything but put a stop to it.  We were told not to issue further 

funding agreements while they had a think about what came next.  The Mayor was very quick to write to the 

then-Chancellor to say that this pause needed to be lifted as soon as possible because we were still members 

of the EU.  That is not going to change any time soon.  Therefore, it was important that we were able to 

commit funding.   

 

We got a stop-gap announcement in August, though we did not know it was a stop-gap at the time.  The 

announcement in August said, “Continue to sign funding agreements, but you have to sign them by the 

autumn statement”.  We felt that was a little silly because the autumn statement is an arbitrary deadline that 

bears no relation to European programmes, but that was what we were given so we worked with it and pushed 

to get as many funding agreements signed as we could.   

 

Everyone was caught on the hop in early October when, during an announcement made as part of the 

Conservative Party Conference Week, the Chancellor said, “Never mind the autumn statement deadline.  We 

are confirming now that we will permit funding to be committed to any European project up until the point of 

Brexit.  Furthermore, for any projects that are entered into, the Government will honour those commitments 

post-Brexit”.  That is very much what we had been arguing for all along.  It gives us a longer, sensible timescale 

to use.  All the Government has said is that projects will not be disadvantaged.  We can carry on reclaiming 

European money, which will be replaced with domestic funding.   

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  Until the end of the project? 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  Yes.   

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  Or Brexit, whichever comes last.   

Page 29



 

 

 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  Yes.  We have a way forward for the next couple of 

years which should, if there are no further changes, allow us to commit all our remaining funds.   

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  We still have funds potentially to commit that we have not committed so far? 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  Yes.   

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  Right.  That is 15% of one and about half of the other? 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  Yes.  We are awaiting this week - another 

Christmas present - for the Government to confirm.  There have not been any calls, open competitive bids, 

permitted since the referendum.  We understand that that is going to change in the next week or so and we 

will be able to open up a call, which should enable us to commit our remaining ERDF funds, hopefully next 

week. 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  OK.  This programme that we are in the middle of now lasts three years, did you say? 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  It is rather confusing with EU funds.  We talk about 

the 2014 - 2020 programmes but actually you have until 2023 to spend the money.  Clearly Brexit calls into 

question whether that will happen.   

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  That is the next question.  The projects you are committing to now are for how long? 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  Typically three years.   

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  Typically three years.  From around now? 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  Now, yes.   

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  That takes us from now to 2019 in round terms.  Post-2019, if Brexit has happened by 

then - one presumes it is going to happen by then given the Government’s present timetable, subject to the 

Supreme Court and everybody else - we do not know what is going to happen to all these various projects? 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  You could assume that for the next couple of years 

we will be able to commit funds but we do not know what is coming after that.   

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  The Government will continue the funds that you have committed up until, 

effectively, 2019. 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  We could go beyond.  We could theoretically be 

signing projects in 2019 that will go on to 2022.  They would be honoured, under what the Government has 

said.   

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  Assuming the Government agrees to that happening.  They may decide that is not 

such a good -- 

 

Page 30



 

 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  They have said for now that they will but it is such 

a febrile world at the moment that you cannot take anything for granted.   

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  It is a known unknown.   

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  We have a deal on the table, put down by the 

Chancellor, which we should stick with.  The bigger risk, and certainly the risk that we are apprising the Mayor 

of, is, “What does come next?”  Some of you may recall that before the referendum there were some pro-

Brexit voices saying, “It is good to get out of all this stuff because we will be able to use the money that is 

freed up to do our own thing”.  If that actually happened, of course that would be great.  If we have devolved 

domestic funding to spend free of the current restrictions that come with EU funding -- 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  A bit like giving £365 million a week to the National Health Service? 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  That would be a good thing.  We do not know at 

the moment whether that is going to happen or not and the discussions are just starting in Whitehall about 

what the successor funding might look like, if indeed there is successor funding.  To me, that is the big issue.   

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  Yes.  At the moment, you are not envisaging a shortfall on anything we are committed 

to? 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  No. 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  No, right.  The question is what happens when all this unwinds. 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  Yes.   

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  Right, OK.  Turning to the boroughs, Cath [Shaw] and Richard [Simpson], have you 

used EU funding for regeneration projects?  If so, how? 

 

Richard Simpson, Executive Director of Resources, London Borough of Croydon):  The first category 

of the EIB is probably the biggest area that we have tapped into.  We have been doing some regeneration for 

our school places programmes.  It was of a scale, at a local borough level, that the EIB would be interested in. 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  How much did you borrow? 

 

Richard Simpson, Executive Director of Resources, London Borough of Croydon):  £100 million, about 

12 months ago.  The rate compared to the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) was about 1% better.  It was a 

20-year loan at about 2.5%, compared to PWLB, who had it at 3.5%.  Roughly £1 million a year for 20 years.   

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  I do not know why it is better but it is.   

 

Richard Simpson, Executive Director of Resources, London Borough of Croydon):  It has not always 

been better.  The cycle at that time was that it was significantly better, and still is.  It is a similar tale in terms 

of our growth zone, which we have discussed with them as well.  That is another big piece of infrastructure.  

They are still talking to us but they are not -- 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  Not as enthusiastic? 

Page 31



 

 

 

 

Richard Simpson, Executive Director of Resources, London Borough of Croydon):  Not as enthusiastic 

as they were a year ago, no.  There has not been much on any of the other programmes for us. 

 

Cath Shaw (Deputy Chief Executive, London Borough of Barnet):  I am not sighted on our Treasury 

Management Strategy so I could not categorically say we have not used the EIB for something like schools 

capital.  I do not know.  In terms of my world, regeneration, we have not used Europe for physical 

regeneration.  We have used ESF for employment programmes.  We have a multi-agency team in Burnt Oak, 

which is our most deprived ward, and that has some input from the ESF.  We did bid for some money for a 

business hub as well but that was unsuccessful in terms of coming through. 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  How much have they put into Burnt Oak? 

 

Cath Shaw (Deputy Chief Executive, London Borough of Barnet):  I cannot recall off the top of my 

head.  It is a few hundred thousand.   

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  Could you let us know? 

 

Cath Shaw (Deputy Chief Executive, London Borough of Barnet):  Yes, of course. 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  Could you let us know if in fact you have had Richard’s [Simpson] good fortune, 

borrowing at a cheaper rate? 

 

Cath Shaw (Deputy Chief Executive, London Borough of Barnet):  Yes, of course.  Yes, that is fine.   

 

Tony Arbour AM:  It is good to hear that things are going well with all the European funding.  We are all 

happy.  That is good to know.   

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Deputy Chair):  Sorry.  Obviously in this European conversation there is an awful lot of 

speculation.  As a net contributor, is there not a possibility that we ultimately could get more funding with less 

strings that is easier to apply for and more directed? 

 

Tony Arbour AM:  A positive question. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Deputy Chair):  Obviously it comes from Europe and it has its own -- 

 

Tony Arbour AM:  You are a ‘glass half full’ person, Shaun. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Deputy Chair):  Absolutely. 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  That was what I was referring to earlier.  If you 

believe that the Government will now fully replace European funding with the same amount of domestic 

funding that is devolved to the Mayor or not controlled centrally, that would be great.  That is exactly what we 

should be lobbying for.  I am not entirely personally optimistic that we will get that because there are going to 

be an awful lot of other commitments. 

 

Tony Arbour AM:  Cynicism. 

 

Page 32



 

 

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  Let us see.  In terms of what the Mayor is going to 

be asking for, it is exactly that.   

 

Fiona Twycross AM:  Conservative Members will no doubt be lobbying the Government for that.   

 

Tony Arbour AM:  We will be lobbying our side.   

 

Fiona Twycross AM:  Absolutely.   

 

Alex Conway (European Programmes Director, GLA):  We are all on the same side here. 

 

Navin Shah AM (Chair):  Let us move on to the last question, against any speculation. 

 

Tony Arbour AM:  Last question.  You have four minutes to answer it, please.  Why have you chosen to use 

the TIF model?  What are the strengths and weaknesses of the model?  Did you consider any other mechanism 

to raise the regeneration finance?  How do you deal with the risk, and do you have any contingency plans?  

Shall we start with Barnet and then work our way down? 

 

Cath Shaw (Deputy Chief Executive, London Borough of Barnet):  I have one of those four minutes, 

have I?  Brent Cross is not a classic TIF in that it is the business rates from the shopping centre expansion that 

are funding the train station that unlocks the housing, whereas with a classic TIF you are borrowing against 

rates that are delivered by the bit of infrastructure you are building.  You are always taking a bit of a punt that 

the bit of infrastructure will appear and then pay you back.  We are predicating our borrowing on the income 

from the shopping centre and we are running on a parallel track with them.  We will not commit to the station 

funding until they have committed to the investment in the shopping centre.  That takes out a lot of the risk 

relative to a pure TIF, where there is an element of hoping that the offices or whatever it is will come 

on-stream afterwards.  It was less risky for us.   

 

I should probably say, just for the record, that the impression in your briefing note is that the GLA is 

undertaking borrowing to support the delivery of the train station.  That is not the case.  The council is 

undertaking all the borrowing but the GLA’s share of the business rates will be used to repay that borrowing.  I 

did not want you to think that the GLA was borrowing money that you were unsighted on.  It is not.   

 

We did not have a contingency plan.  The scheme had a viability gap on the south side, which is the housing 

and commercial element, and the only way that we could come up with to meet that gap was to bring the 

delivery of the train station right to the front.  Then the obvious way to fund the train station was with the 

business rates from the housing.  One thing I would add, which is perhaps slightly outside the terms of your 

question, is that I think the devolution of business rates to local government - obviously we do not know what  

‘local’ means in terms of London versus boroughs in this context yet - does mean that I think this will be an 

increasingly important mechanism for us to use.  We had to get the Treasury’s consent and permission for it 

and it will be within our gift going forward, in theory in least.   

 

Richard Simpson, Executive Director of Resources, London Borough of Croydon):  We chose it 

because it has a clear income stream that can repay the debt.  Other options would be getting a grant from 

someone else - the scale was too big for that - or borrowing ourselves, which places huge pressure on a 

reducing budget for the Council at the same time.  There is a clear income stream to repay it.  There are some 

risks in that and I will touch on that in a second.   

 

Page 33



 

 

 

One of the weaknesses is that it takes out a big chunk of growth that might be otherwise used to fund other 

services and pressures that the council has.  There is a choice about saying, “This is hugely important to the 

long-term future of the borough.  Therefore, we need to ring-fence it to pay back the debt”.  Again, a strength 

is that in normal local government finance, five years in, that would go off to Durham or wherever.  It would 

get redistributed to somewhere else in the country that may need that money more than Croydon at that 

point.  Selfishly, it allows investment in the borough.   

 

In terms of contingency, ours is reliant on two major developments, one being the retail centre in Croydon and 

one being some commercial next to East Croydon Station.  There is a contingency about certain triggers from 

the developments happening before we commit to the debt and the investment.  You could scale Croydon’s 

growth zone down and do it at a different pace.  We would make those decisions in partnership with the GLA, 

about priorities and those kinds of things.  There are contingencies in that sense of not borrowing £300 million 

before you understand that the income is more certain. 

 

Tony Arbour AM:  Were you both helped by the GLA?  I have done the Westminster City Council ones and 

these things are very complex.  It is worse than a Private Finance Initiative in many ways.  Did you get support 

from Debbie’s [Jackson] team?   

 

Richard Simpson, Executive Director of Resources, London Borough of Croydon):  You mentioned 

David Gallie before, did you not?  I think he has worked on the Northern line extension piece as well, which is 

on a bigger scale but with some similar risks around the system and things to include.  That was really helpful 

for us.   

 

Tony Arbour AM:  Debbie, are you pushing TIFs around London now?  Are you saying to local authorities, 

“This is the model that you should have a look at”?  It is a very complex model.   

 

Debbie Jackson (Assistant Director, Regeneration, GLA):  It is a very complex model.  You picked up on 

Westminster and we have been talking to them as well.  It is interesting, I am not sure anyone can say what a 

‘traditional’ TIF is anymore because they are all so different.  The Westminster one is equally different.  We are 

working with areas where it is appropriate.  I certainly would not say we are pushing TIFs everywhere because 

there is always a judgement call about the benefit of, in effect, ring-fencing funding to an area versus the 

benefit of that being available on a wider geography.  It is horses for courses.  The ones that have gone 

through so far, we have worked very hard on to make sure that it makes sense in that location.  I do not think 

it will be a right answer for everywhere.   

 

Tony Arbour AM:  There are half a dozen or a dozen going through elsewhere, or something like that.   

 

Debbie Jackson (Assistant Director, Regeneration, GLA):  There are the ones at the table, there is the 

Royal Docks Enterprise Zone, obviously, which is a similar principle, and then there is Westminster and the 

Northern line extension, of course, as well.   

 

Cath Shaw (Deputy Chief Executive, London Borough of Barnet):  If I may, Chair, in the ten seconds we 

have left, one of the reasons why it was a very obvious choice for Brent Cross is that the planning consent is 

structured so that the shopping centre cannot expand unless it is part of a comprehensive development, 

including the housing.  If the housing remained unviable, there would be no business rates arising from the 

growth of the shopping centre.  We were not diverting that money from any other area or any other project 

within Barnet because it simply would not have existed if we did not deliver the housing.  You are not choosing 

Page 34



 

 

 

between priorities.  You either generate the business rates, in which case it makes sense to invest them in 

doing it, or you do not generate the business rates and they are not there at all.   

 

Debbie Jackson (Assistant Director, Regeneration, GLA):  Sorry, I know you want to finish.  A really 

important point around TIFs is that they only work in commercial locations.  Given the housing growth agenda, 

in an area which foresees significant housing growth with only ancillary commercial, if you like, there is no TIF 

model.  Then we have to look at other funding models.  That is why there has always been a discussion about 

financial devolution and what the Finance Commission wants.   

 

Navin Shah AM (Chair):  Thank you.  That concludes our discussion on regeneration funds.  On behalf of the 

Committee, I would like to thank all of our four guests for sparing your time and for the invaluable input that 

you have given to the Committee.  If there is anything you would like to add, please feel free to write in.  Once 

again, thank you for coming along today.  

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



 

                                                                      

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

 

Subject: Summary List of Actions  
 

Report to: Regeneration Committee  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 
 

Date: 19 January 2017 

 
This report will be considered in public 
 
 
 
1. Summary  

 
1.1 This report sets out the actions arising from previous meetings of the Regeneration Committee. 

 
 
2. Recommendation  
 

2.1 That the Committee notes the completed and ongoing actions arising from previous 

meetings of the Committee. 

 

 

Action arising from the Committee meeting on 7 December 2016 

 

Item Topic Status For Action  
 

6 The Mayor's Review of the Old Oak and Park Royal 

Development Corporation 

 

The Committee delegated authority to the Chair, in 

consultation with party Group Lead Members, to agree 

any output from the discussion on the Mayor’s review of 

the Old Oak and Park Royal Development Corporation. 

 

 

 

 

In progress 

 

 

 

 

Scrutiny 

Manager 

7 The Future of Regeneration Funding  

 

 

 During the course of the discussion, the European 
Programmes Director, GLA, undertook to provide 
information pertaining to: 

 The major beneficiaries in London of the Horizon 

2020 Project; and 

 European Investment Bank loans in London. 

 
 

Completed.  This 

information has been 

circulated to 

Members. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 4



        

 During the course of the discussion the Deputy Chief 

Executive Officer, London Borough of Barnet, agreed to 

provide information pertaining to European Social Fund 

funding that has been put into Burnt Oak, London 

Borough of Barnet, for employment programmes. 

 

Completed.  This 

information has been 

circulated to 

Members.  

 

7 The Future of Regeneration Funding  
 

The Committee delegated authority to the Chair, in 

consultation with the Deputy Chairman, to agree any 

output from the discussion on the future of regeneration 

funding in London. 
 

 

 

In progress.   

 

 

 

 

Scrutiny 

Manager 

8 Regeneration Committee Work Programme 

 

The Committee delegated authority to the Chair, in 

consultation with the Deputy Chairman, to agree the 

scope for the Regeneration Committee’s meeting with 

the London Legacy Development Corporation on 

19 January 2017. 

 

The Committee delegated authority to the Chair, in 

consultation with the Deputy Chairman, to agree 

the date and arrangements for a visit to meet artists and 

residents of Hackney Wick and Stratford as part of the 

Regeneration Committee’s scrutiny of culture-led 

regeneration. 

 

 

 

Completed – See 

Agenda Items 5  

and 6. 

 

 

 

Completed.  The visit 

has been arranged for 

12 January 2017.  See 

Agenda Item 5. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Action arising from the Committee meeting on 13 October 2016 

 

Item Topic Status For Action  
 

7 The Mayor’s Civic Crowdfunding Programme 

 

The Committee delegated authority to the Chair, in 

consultation with the Deputy Chairman, to agree any 

output from the Committee’s meeting on the Mayor’s 

Civic Crowdfunding Programme. 

 

 

 

In progress.   

To feed into the 

Committee’s review of 

culture-led 

regeneration. 

 

 

 

Scrutiny 

Manager 

    

 

 

 

 

 

Page 38



        

Action arising from the Committee meeting on 12 July 2016 

 

Item Topic Status For Action  
 

11 Creative Placemaking: A New Approach to Culture 

and Regeneration 

 

During the course of the discussion, the Assistant 

Director – Regeneration, GLA, undertook to share 

information about how Creative Enterprise Zones would 

be designated and how the Mayor would measure the 

success of these zones with the Committee at a later 

date once the criteria and scope had been further 

drafted. 

 

The Committee delegated authority to the Chair, in 

consultation with party Group Lead Members, to agree 

any output from the Committee’s review of creative 

placemaking. 

 

 

 

 

In progress 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In progress 

(now renamed 

culture-led 

regeneration) 

 

 

 

Assistant 

Director – 

Regeneration, 

GLA 

 

 

 

 

Scrutiny 

Manager 

 

 

 

 

3. Legal Implications 
 
3.1 The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in this report. 

 

 

4. Financial Implications 
 

4.1   There are no financial implications to the Greater London Authority arising from this report. 

 

 

 

List of appendices to this report:  None 

 
 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: None 

 

Contact Officer: Joanna Brown and Teresa Young, Senior Committee Officers 

Telephone: 020 7983 6559 

Email: joanna.brown@london.gov.uk and teresa.young@london.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 39

mailto:joanna.brown@london.gov.uk
mailto:teresa.young@london.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40



 

                                                                      

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

 

Subject: Action Taken Under Delegated 
Authority  

Report to: Regeneration Committee  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 
 

Date: 19 January 2017 

 
This report will be considered in public 
 
 
 
1. Summary  

 

1.1 This report outlines action taken by the Chair in accordance with the delegations granted to him by 

the Regeneration Committee at its meeting on 7 December 2016. 

 

 

2. Recommendations  
 

2.1 That the Committee notes the action taken by the Chair, Navin Shah AM, under delegated 

authority, following consultation with the Deputy Chairman, namely to: 

 

(a) Agree the arrangements for the Committee’s site visit on 12 January 2017 to meet 

artists and residents of Hackney Wick as part of the Committee’s scrutiny of  

culture-led regeneration; and  

 

(b) Agree the scope for the Committee’s meeting with the London Legacy Development 

Corporation at this meeting. 
 
 

3. Background  
 

Site Visit to meet artists and residents of Hackney Wick 

3.1 At its meeting on 7 December 2016, the Committee delegated authority to the Chair, in consultation 

with the Deputy Chairman, to agree the date and arrangements for a visit to meet artists and 

residents of Hackney Wick and Stratford as part of the Regeneration Committee’s scrutiny of 

culture-led regeneration 

 

 Regeneration Committee meeting of 19 January 2017 

3.2 At its meeting on 7 December 2016, the Committee delegated authority to the Chair, in consultation 

with the Deputy Chairman to agree the scope for the Regeneration Committee’s meeting with the 

London Legacy Development Corporation on 19 January 2017. 

 

Page 41

Agenda Item 5



        

 

 

 

4. Issues for Consideration 
 

4.1  Following consultation with the Deputy Chairman, the Chairman agreed that the site visit to meet 

artists and residents of Hackney Wick, Fish Island and Stratford would take place on 12 January 

2017.  The Chairman also agreed that the discussion would be held at Stour Space and would focus 

on the impact of the Olympic Park regeneration on local communities. Issues of collaboration and 

communication with the London Legacy Development Corporation (LLDC) and the demolition of 

artists’ studios at Vittoria Wharf to make way for a pedestrian bridge would also be addressed. 

 

4.2 Following consultation with the Deputy Chairman, the Chairman agreed the scoping for the 

Committee’s question and answer session with the LLDC at this meeting.  The report at Agenda 

Item 6 sets out more detail about the scoping for this meeting. 

 

 

5. Legal Implications 
 
5.1 The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in this report. 

 

 

6. Financial Implications 
 

6.1  There are no financial implications to the Greater London Authority arising from this report. 

 

 

 

List of appendices to this report: None 

 
 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers:  

Member Delegated Authority Forms 767 (scope of 19 January 2017 meeting); and 768 (site visit). 

 

Contact Officer: Joanna Brown and Teresa Young, Senior Committee Officers 

Telephone: 020 7983 6559 

Email: joanna.brown@london.gov.uk and teresa.young@london.gov.uk 

 

 

  

Page 42

mailto:joanna.brown@london.gov.uk
mailto:teresa.young@london.gov.uk


 

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

 

Subject: London Legacy Development 
Corporation Review of Progress and Finances  

Report to: Regeneration Committee  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 

 
Date: 19 January 2017 
 

This report will be considered in public 
 
 

 

1. Summary 
 
1.1. This report sets out the background for a meeting with invited guests to discuss the London Legacy 

Development Corporation’s (LLDC) progress and finances. 
 

 

2. Recommendations 
 

2.1 That the Committee notes this report as background to the discussion with invited guests 

regarding the London Legacy Development Corporation’s progress and finances, and notes 

the subsequent discussion.  

 

2.2 That the Committee delegates authority to the Chair, Navin Shah AM, in consultation with 

the Deputy Chairman, to agree any output from the Committee’s meeting on the London 

Legacy Development Corporation’s progress and finances. 

 

 

3. Background 
 

3.1 At its meeting on 12 July 2016 the Committee agreed its work programme, which included receiving an 

update on the progress and finances of the LLDC. 

 

3.2 Formed in April 2012, the LLDC’s purpose is to ‘use the opportunity of the London 2012 Games and 

the creation of Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park (the Park) to change the lives of people in East London 

and drive growth and investment in London and the United Kingdom by developing an inspiring and 

innovative place where people want to live, work and visit.’  The LLDC acts as a landowner, a 

regeneration agency and a Planning Authority.  It is a Mayoral Development Corporation, and therefore 

directly accountable to Londoners through the Mayor of London. 

 

3.3 The Committee has carried out detailed scrutiny of the LLDC in recent years; examining its progress 

with delivering legacy uses for the 2012 Games venues, its regeneration budget, progress against 

employment and skills targets, and its work with partners involved at the site.   

 

Page 43

Agenda Item 6



    

 

3.4 The Committee held a site visit to Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park on 10 November 2016 and met with 

artists and residents of Hackney Wick and Fish Island on 12 January 2017. A record of the site visit to 

the Olympic Park was noted at the previous Committee Meeting on 7 December 2016.   

 

 

4. Issues for Consideration  
 

Long-term vision 

4.1 In March 2016, the LLDC Board approved a Ten Year Plan for the period 2015-2016 to 2024-25. The 

Plan sets out business objectives and how to achieve them in different areas: ‘Live’, ‘Work’, ‘Visit’, 

‘Inspire’ and ‘Deliver’. This meeting will give Members the opportunity to review the Plan and the 

objectives and discuss the Corporation’s long-term strategy for the regeneration of East London. 

 

Progress and finances 

4.2 Since 2012, the LLDC has achieved major progress in the regeneration of the Park.  After the 

development of East Village, construction has started at Chobham Manor for housing, and the 

International Quarter for business. The Bobby Moore Academy is expected to open in September 2017. 

 

4.3 The LLDC has also made progress with its cultural offer.  First tenants have arrived at Here East, the 

creative and digital hub in the former Olympic Press and Broadcast Centre. Plans for the £850 million 

Cultural and Education District, were unveiled last summer.  The new scheme features outposts of the 

V&A museum and Sadler’s Wells theatre and new university campuses of University College London 

(UCL) and the University of the Arts London (UAL). 

 

4.4 However, in December 2016, the London Assembly’s Budget and Performance Committee raised 

concerns about the Corporation’s economic sustainability and questioned the ability of the LLDC to 

become financially self-sufficient without relying on Greater London Authority (GLA) funding, as it 

‘continues to make operating losses‘.  The London Assembly came to the conclusion that ‘Regeneration 

opportunities are under threat – in part because of a lack of leadership’.  In November 2016, the LLDC 

Chairman, David Edmonds CBE, resigned, following a Mayoral inquiry into the Olympic stadium 

transformation rising costs. 

 

Collaboration with surrounding areas 

4.5 The LLDC aims to transform East London and the Lower Lea Valley.  The LLDC has been designing and 

delivering a number of local projects in the town centres and neighbourhoods surrounding the Park. 

Projects include playgrounds, park re-landscaping, tree planting, high street improvements, a new 

community cultural centre, and improvements to local routes. 

 

4.6 The actions of the LLDC and their effects on surrounding areas have sometimes raised controversy, 

following for example the demolition of artists’ studios at Vittoria Wharf or plans for the construction of 

a batching plant.  After meeting with artists and residents of surrounding areas, the Committee may 

wish to follow up the issues raised with the LLDC in terms of the regeneration of the wider east London 

area and its relationships with surrounding boroughs. 
  

Page 44



    

 

 

Invited guests 

4.7 The following guests have been invited to the meeting:  

 David Goldstone CBE, Chief Executive, LLDC; 

 Dr Paul Brickell, Executive Director of Regeneration and Community Partnerships, LLDC; 

 Mayor John Biggs, Executive Mayor of Tower Hamlets; 

 Councillor Clare Coghill, Cabinet Member for Economic Growth and High Streets, Waltham 

Forest Council; and 

 Dr Debbie Humphry, Researcher and Photographer, Livingmaps Network, University of East 

London. 

 

Areas for discussion 

4.8 Members may wish to explore the following: 

 LLDC long-term plan;  

 LLDC general progress;  

 LLDC finances; and  

 Collaboration between LLDC and surrounding areas.  

 

4.9 The Committee is recommended to delegate authority to the Chair, in consultation with the Deputy 

Chairman, to agree any output from the meeting. 

 

 

5. Legal Implications 
 

5.1 The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in this report. 

 

 

6. Financial Implications 
 

6.1 There are no financial implications to the GLA arising from this report. 

 

 

List of appendices to this report: 

None 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: None 

 

Contact Officer:  Julien Danero Iglesias, Assistant Scrutiny Manager 

Telephone:  020 7983 5802 

E-mail:  scrutiny@london.gov.uk 

 

Page 45

mailto:scrutiny@london.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46



 

                                                                    

 
City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

 

Subject: Regeneration Committee Work 
Programme  

 

Report to: Regeneration Committee  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 

 
Date: 19 January 2017 

This report will be considered in public 

 
 
 
1. Summary  

 
1.1 This report sets out a proposed work programme for the Regeneration Committee for the remainder 

of the 2016/17 Assembly year. 

 

 

2. Recommendations 
 

2.1 That the Committee agrees its updated work programme. 

 

2.2 That authority be delegated to the Chair, Navin Shah AM, in consultation with the Deputy 

Chairman, to agree the scoping for the meeting on broadband and connectivity in London 

on 7 February 2017.  

 
2.3 That authority be delegated to the Chair, Navin Shah AM, in consultation with the Deputy 

Chairman, to agree the topic and scope for the meeting on 1 March 2017. 

 
 

3. Background  
 
3.1 The Assembly has agreed meeting slots for the Regeneration Committee for the remainder of the 

2016/17 Assembly Year, which the Committee may choose to use for formal meetings, site visits, 

informal meetings or other engagement activities.  The Regeneration Committee agreed its initial 

work programme at its meeting on 12 July 2016.  

 

Date Topic 

 

Tuesday, 7 February 2017 at 10am 

 

Meeting on broadband and connectivity in London, with a 

focus on post-industrial regeneration areas. 

 

Wednesday, 1 March 2017 at 10am To be confirmed 

 

 

Page 47

Agenda Item 7



        

 

4. Issues for Consideration  
  

 Culture-led Regeneration 

4.1 The Committee’s investigation on culture-led regeneration has been carried out across a number of 

stages. At its meeting on 12 July 2016, the Committee looked at the role of creative place-making in 

regeneration.  On 5 September 2016, the Committee undertook a visit to view how Creative Barking 

and Dagenham and the London Borough of Barking and Dagenham use culture as a tool for 

regeneration.  On 12 September 2016, the Committee met informally with boroughs and developers.  

On 10 November 2016, the Committee undertook a visit to the Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park to 

receive a briefing about the large cultural projects planned for the area.  The Committee arranged to 

meet with artists and residents of Hackney Wick, Fish Island and Stratford on 12 January 2017 to 

discuss the regeneration of the Olympic Park as seen from their neighborhoods. 

 

4.2 It is anticipated that a final report of the review will be published by February 2017. 

 

 Meeting with artists of Hackney Wick, Fish Island and Stratford 

4.3 The Regeneration Committee arranged to meet with artists and residents of Hackney Wick, Fish 

Island and Stratford on 12 January 2017.  The discussion took place at Stour Space and focused on 

regeneration and local communities.  Attention was given to the work of the LLDC and their 

collaboration with surrounding areas.  The Committee also addressed issues of communication with 

the LLDC and the demolition of artists’ studios at Vittoria Wharf to make way for a pedestrian 

bridge.  

 

  Broadband and connectivity 

4.4  The GLA has taken an increasing interest in improving broadband connectivity in London.  The 

previous Mayor published a Smart London Plan to support London’s growth through digital 

technology.  In ‘A City for All Londoners’, the current Mayor sees ‘digital connectivity’ as a key utility 

central to planning and new development.  The Mayor also intends to appoint London’s first Chief 

Digital Officer to oversee growth in this sector.  

 

4.5 The Committee’s meeting on 7 February 2017 will look at the role of connectivity and broadband in 

the regeneration of post-industrial areas.  The Committee will review the work of the Regeneration 

Team to date on super-fast broadband before looking at the Mayor’s priorities and proposals for 

digital connectivity.  Members will look into obstacles and potential solutions to its widespread 

delivery in London.  The meeting could be accompanied by a site visit to Digital Greenwich to 

discuss the impact of connectivity on regeneration.   

 

4.6 The Committee is recommended to delegate authority to the Chair, in consultation with the Deputy 

Chairman, to agree the scoping for the meeting on broadband and connectivity in London on 

7 February 2017.  

  

 Meeting of the Committee on 1 March 2017 

4.7 The Committee has not yet agreed the main topic for its meeting on 1 March 2017.  It is therefore 

recommended that the Committee delegate authority to the Chair, in consultation with the Deputy 

Chairman, to agree the topic and scoping for the meeting on 1 March 2017. 

Page 48



        

 

5. Legal Implications 
 

5.1 The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in this report. 

 

 

6. Financial Implications 
 

6.1 There are no financial implications to the Greater London Authority arising from this report. 

 

 

 

List of appendices to this report:  None 

 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: None 

 

Contact Officer:  Paul  Watling, Scrutiny Manager 

Telephone:  020 7983 4393 

E-mail:  scrutiny@london.gov.uk 

 

Page 49

mailto:scrutiny@london.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 50


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interests
	3 Minutes
	Minutes - Appendix 1
	Minutes - Appendix 2

	4 Summary List of Actions
	5 Action Taken Under Delegated Authority
	6 London Legacy Development Corporation Review of Progress and Finances
	7 Regeneration Committee Work Programme

